Issue Date: November 12, 2015

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

#### **FOR**

#### WRAPAROUND ORANGE SERVICES

#### RFP #Y16-152-LC

The Orange County Board of County Commissioners, Orange County, Florida, invites interested parties to submit proposals **no later than 2:00 PM, Tuesday, December 1, 2015**, for providing Wraparound Services (Wraparound Specialists, Family Partners, Lead Wraparound Specialist, Wraparound Supervisor and Wraparound Coach) to the Board of County Commissioners.

Sealed proposals will be accepted at and copies of the Request for Proposals may be obtained from: Orange County Procurement Division, Internal Operations Centre II, 400 E. South Street, 2nd Floor, Orlando, FL 32801.

Copies may be requested by phoning (407) 836-5635. Solicitations are also available for downloading from the Internet at: http://apps.ocfl.net/orangebids/bidopen.asp.

Johnny Richardson, CPPO, CFCM Manager, Procurement Division

#### NOTICE TO PROPOSERS

To ensure that your proposal is responsive, you are urged to request clarification or guidance on any issues involving this solicitation before submission of your response. Your point-of-contact for this solicitation is Linda Carson, Senior Purchasing Agent, at (407) 836-5548, whose email address is <a href="mailto:LindaCarson@ocfl.net">LindaCarson@ocfl.net</a>. You may contact Linda Carson at any time during this process, including during the Black Out Period.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

DESCRIPTION		PAGE
1.	PURPOSE	2
2.	INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS	2
3.	TERMS AND CONDITIONS	3-10
4.	QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP	9
5.	DEBRIEFING OF PROPOSERS	9
6.	REFERENCE CHECKS	10
7.	PROPOSAL FORMAT	11-20
8.	SELECTION CRITERIA	20
9.	SCOPE OF SERVICES	21-35
10.	ATTACHMENT – BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT	36-50
11.	EMERGENCY CONTACTS	51
12.	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA	51
13.	EMPLOYMENT DATA, SCHEDULE OF MINORITIES AND WOMEN	
14.	SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTING - M/WBE PARTICIF	PATION FORM
15.	LOCATION	
16.	CONFLICT/NON/CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT	Т
17.	AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES/NEGOTIATORS	
18.	DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE FORM	
19.	WELFARE RECIPIENTS FORM	
20.	LETTER OF INTENT	
21.	E-VERIFICATION CERTIFICATION	
22.	RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM	
23.	FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQ)	
24.	ORANGE COUNTY SPECIFIC PROJECT EXPENDITURE	E REPORT
25.	FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQ)	
26.	SAMPLE CONTRACT	1-22
27.	ATTACHMENT A – "INDEX"	
28.	ATTACHMENT A – PART B	
20	ATTACHMENT C STAFF INVOICES	

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

#### **FOR**

#### WRAPAROUND ORANGE SERVICES

#### RFP #Y16-152-LC

#### **PURPOSE**:

The Orange County Board of County Commissioners, Orange County, Florida, is soliciting for Wraparound Services to continue and expand project activities in Wraparound Orange.

#### **INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS:**

Firms or companies desiring to provide services, as described in the Scope of Services, shall submit sealed proposals, one (1) original, eight (8) copies and one (1) electronic copy on CD or USB drive not later than **2:00 PM local time Tuesday, December 1, 2015**, to the Orange County Procurement Division, Internal Operations Centre II, 400 E. South Street, 2nd Floor, Orlando, Florida 32801, (407) 836-5635.

Offers by e-mail, telephone, or fax shall not be accepted. An e-mailed or a faxed proposal shall be rejected as non-responsive regardless of where it is received.

It is the sole responsibility of the proposer to ensure that their proposal reaches the Procurement Division. Proposals received after the specified time and date shall be returned unopened. The time/date stamp clock located in the Procurement Division shall serve as the official authority to determine lateness of any proposal. The decision to refuse to consider a proposal that was received beyond the date/time established in the solicitation shall not be the basis for a protest pursuant to the Orange County Code (Procurement Ordinance).

Respondents are cautioned that they are responsible for delivery to the specific location cited above. If your proposal is delivered by an express mail carrier or by any other means, it is your responsibility to ensure delivery to the above address. This office shall not be responsible for deliveries made to any place other than the specified address.

All proposals will be opened publicly and the names of all proposers shall be read aloud.

#### TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### 1. <u>ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION/CANCELLATION</u>

The County reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals, with or without cause, to waive technicalities, or to accept the proposal which, in its sole judgment best serves the interest of the County, or to award a contract to the next most qualified proposer if a successful proposer does not execute a contract within thirty (30) days after approval of the selection by the Board of County Commissioners or other competent authority. Orange County reserves the right, and the Manager of Procurement Division has absolute and sole discretion, to cancel a solicitation at any time prior to approval of the award by the Board of County Commissioners when such approval is required. The decision to cancel a solicitation cannot be the basis for a protest pursuant to the Orange County Code.

### 2. **CLARIFICATION**

The County reserves the right to request clarification of information submitted and to request additional information of one or more proposers.

### 3. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL

Any proposal may be withdrawn until the date and time set above for the submission of the proposals. Any proposals not so withdrawn shall constitute an irrevocable offer, for a period of ninety (90) days, to provide to the County the services set forth in this Request for Proposals, or until one or more of the proposals have been awarded.

#### 4. SEALED PROPOSALS

Proposals shall be delivered in a sealed envelope and proposers should label their proposal with the following:

- A. Request for Proposals Number
- B. Date of Opening
- C. Name of Proposer

# 5. PROPOSAL PREPARATION

Costs of preparation of a response to this request for proposals are solely those of the Proposer. The County assumes no responsibility for any such costs incurred by the Proposer. The Proposer also agrees that the County bears no responsibility for any costs associated with any administrative or judicial proceedings resulting from the solicitation process.

### 6. **INSURANCE**

Vendor/Contractor agrees to maintain on a primary basis and at its sole expense, at all times throughout the duration of this contract the following types of insurance coverage with limits and on forms (including endorsements) as described herein. These requirements, as well as the County's review or acceptance of insurance maintained by Vendor/Contractor is not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities assumed by Vendor/Contractor under this contract. Vendor/Contractor is required to maintain any coverage required by federal and state workers' compensation or financial responsibility laws including but not limited to Chapter 324 and 440, Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time to time.

The Vendor/Contractor shall require and ensure that each of its sub-Vendors/sub-Contractors providing services hereunder (if any) procures and maintains until the completion of their respective services, insurance of the types and to the limits specified herein.

Insurance carriers providing coverage required herein must be licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida and must possess a current A.M. Best's Financial Strength Rating of A- Class VIII or better.

(Note: State licenses can be checked via <a href="www.floir.com/companysearch/">www.floir.com/companysearch/</a> and A.M. Best Ratings are available at <a href="www.ambest.com">www.ambest.com</a>)

#### Required Coverage:

Commercial General Liability - The Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage issued on the most recent version of the ISO form as filed for use in Florida or its equivalent, with a limit of liability of not less than \$500,000 per occurrence. Vendor/Contractor further agrees coverage shall not contain any endorsement(s) excluding or limiting Product/Completed Operations, Contractual Liability, or Separation of Insureds. The General Aggregate limit shall either apply separately to this contract or shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit.

#### Required Endorsements:

Additional Insured- CG 20 26 or CG 20 10/CG 20 37 or their equivalents.

Note: CG 20 10 must be accompanied by CG 20 37 to include products/completed operations

Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery- CG 24 04 or its equivalent. Note: If blanket endorsements are being submitted please include the entire endorsement and the applicable policy number.

**Business Automobile Liability** - The Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage for all owned; non-owned and hired vehicles issued on the most recent version of the ISO form as filed for use in Florida or its equivalent, with limits of not less than \$500,000 (five hundred thousand dollars) per accident.

In the event the Vendor/Contractor does not own automobiles the Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage for hired and non-owned auto liability, which may be satisfied by way of endorsement to the Commercial General Liability policy or separate Business Auto Liability policy.

# Required Endorsements:

MCS-90- for operations governed by the Sections 29 & 30 of the Motor Carrier Act of 1980

Workers' Compensation - The Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage for its employees with statutory workers' compensation limits, and no less than \$100,000 each incident of bodily injury or disease for Employers' Liability. Elective exemptions as defined in Florida Statute 440 will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Any Vendor/Contractor using an employee leasing company shall complete the Leased Employee Affidavit.

#### Required Endorsements:

Waiver of Subrogation- WC 00 03 13 or its equivalent

**Professional Liability-** with a limit of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence/claim

Fidelity/Employee Dishonesty- with a limit greater than or equal to the contract amount

**Sexual Abuse & Molestation**- with a limit of not less than \$100,000 per occurrence/claim

When a self-insured retention or deductible exceeds \$100,000 the COUNTY reserves the right to request a copy of Vendor/Contractor most recent annual report or audited financial statement. For policies written on a "Claims-Made" basis the Vendor/Contractor agrees to maintain a retroactive date prior to or equal to the effective date of this contract. In the event the policy is canceled, non-renewed, switched to occurrence form, or any other event which triggers the right to purchase a Supplemental Extended Reporting Period (SERP) during the life of this contract the Vendor/Contractor agrees to purchase the SERP with a minimum reporting period of not less than two years. Purchase of the SERP shall not relieve the Vendor/Contractor of the obligation to provide replacement coverage.

By entering into this contract Vendor/Contractor agrees to provide a waiver of subrogation or a waiver of transfer of rights of recovery, in favor of the County for the workers' compensation and general liability policies as required herein. When required by the insurer or should a policy condition not permit the Vendor/Contractor to enter into a pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then Vendor/Contractor agrees to notify the insurer and request the policy be endorsed with a Waiver of Subrogation or a Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others endorsement.

Prior to execution and commencement of any operations/services provided under this contract the Vendor/Contractor shall provide the COUNTY with current certificates of insurance evidencing all required coverage. In addition to the certificate(s) of insurance the Vendor/Contractor shall also provide endorsements for each policy as specified above. All specific policy endorsements shall be in the name of the Orange County Board of County Commissioners.

For continuing service contracts renewal certificates shall be submitted immediately upon request by either the COUNTY or the COUNTY's contracted certificate compliance management firm. The certificates shall clearly indicate that the Vendor/Contractor has obtained insurance of the type, amount and classification as required for strict compliance with this insurance section. Vendor/Contractor shall notify the COUNTY not less than thirty (30) business days (ten business days for non-payment of premium) of any material change in or cancellation/non-renewal of insurance coverage. The Vendor/Contractor shall provide evidence of replacement coverage to maintain compliance with the aforementioned insurance requirements to the COUNTY or its certificate management representative five (5) business days prior to the effective date of the replacement policy (ies).

The certificate holder shall read:

Orange County Board of County Commissioners c/o Procurement Division 400 E. South Street, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor Orlando, Florida 32801

# 7. DRAFT CONTRACT

The contract that the County intends to use for award is enclosed for reference. Any exceptions to this standard contract must be clearly indicated by return of the standard contract with the proposal, with exceptions clearly noted. The County has the right to require the selected respondent to sign the attached contract or to negotiate revisions to the contract language prior to execution of the contract, at its sole discretion.

Modification or alteration of the documents contained in the solicitation or contract shall only be valid if mutually agreed to in writing by the parties.

# 8. **ACCOUNTING SYSTEM**

The Contractor shall establish and maintain a reasonable accounting system, which enables ready identification of Contractor's cost of goods and use of funds. The accounting system shall also include adequate records and documents to justify all prices for all items invoiced as well as all charges, expenses and costs incurred in providing the goods for at least five (5) years after completion of this contract. The County or designee shall have access to books, records, subcontract(s), financial operations, and documents of the Contractor or its subcontractors, as required to comply with this section, for the purpose of

inspection or audit anytime during normal business hours at the Contractor's place of business. This right to audit shall include the contractor's subcontractors used to procure goods or services under the contract with the County. Contractor shall ensure the County has these same rights with subcontractor(s) and suppliers.

#### 9. SHORTLISTS, PROTESTS and LOBBYING

The recommended award will be posted for review by interested parties at the Procurement Division and at:

http://apps.ocfl.net/OrangeBids/AwardsRec/default.asp prior to submission through the appropriate approval process and will remain posted for a period of five (5) full business days.

Orange County Lobbyist Regulations General Information <a href="http://www.ocfl.net/Portals/0/Resources/Internet/govern/Lobbying/docs/200814.pdf">http://www.ocfl.net/Portals/0/Resources/Internet/govern/Lobbying/docs/200814.pdf</a>

A lobbying blackout period shall commence upon issuance of the solicitation until the Board selects the Contractor. For procurements that do not require Board approval, the blackout period commences upon solicitation issuance and concludes upon contract award.

The Board of County Commissioners may void any contract where the County Mayor, one or more County Commissioners, or a County staff person has been lobbied in violation of the black-out period restrictions of Ordinance No. 2002-15.

# Orange County Protest Procedures <a href="http://www.orangecountyfl.net/Portals/0/Resources/Internet/DEPART">http://www.orangecountyfl.net/Portals/0/Resources/Internet/DEPART</a> MENTS/County\_Admin/docs/CodeCH17-313.pdf

Failure to file a protest with the Procurement Manager by 5:00 PM on the fifth full business day, after posting, shall constitute a waiver of bid protest proceedings.

Information regarding Procurement Committee scheduling and Board approvals is available by calling the Procurement Reception Desk at (407) 836-5635.

# 10. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME

Section 287.133(3)(d), Florida Statutes, provides that the Florida Department of Management Services shall maintain a list of the names and addresses of those who have been disqualified from participating in the public contracting process under this section.

http://www.dms.myflorida.com/business\_operations/state\_purchasing/vendor\_information/convicted\_suspended\_discriminatory\_complaints\_vendor\_lists/convicted\_vendor\_list

A person or affiliate who has been placed on The Convicted Vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime shall not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, shall not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, shall not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or Contractor under a contract with a public entity, and shall not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statute Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on The Convicted Vendor List.

### 11. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The County's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation for its purpose by the Board of County Commissioners, or other specified funding source for this procurement.

### 12. TOBACCO FREE CAMPUS

All Orange County operations under the Board of County Commissioners shall be tobacco free. This policy shall apply to parking lots, parks, break areas and worksites. It is also applicable to contractors and their personnel during contract performance on county-owned property. Tobacco is defined as tobacco products including, but not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, e-cigarettes, pipes, chewing tobacco and snuff. Failure to abide by this policy may result in civil penalties levied under Chapter 386, Florida Statutes and/or contract enforcement remedies.

#### 13. CONTRACT TERM

It is the intent of the County to enter into a one (1) year term contract, with renewal clause for three (3) additional one (1) year terms for services as described herein.

#### 14. SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTING

Proposers shall list **all** proposed sub-contractors to be used, regardless of racial or gender grouping. Include names, addresses, phone numbers, type of work subcontracted (discipline, trade or commodity), proposed percentage of work, and the M/WBE or Majority designation (M/WBE or Non-M/WBE).

# 15. **EQUAL OPPORTUNITY**

It is hereby declared that equal opportunity and nondiscrimination shall be the County's policy intended to assure equal opportunities to every person, regardless of race, religion, sex, sexual orientation and gender expression/identity, color, age, disability or national origin, in securing or holding employment in a field of work or labor for which the person is qualified, as provided by Section 17-314 of the Orange County Code and the County Administrative Regulations.

Further, the Contractor shall abide by the following provisions:

- A. The Contractor shall represent that the Contractor has adopted and maintains a policy of nondiscrimination as defined by applicable County ordinance throughout the term of this contract.
- B. The Contractor shall allow reasonable access to all business and employment records for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with the non-discrimination provision of the contract.

The provisions of the prime contract shall be incorporate by the Contractor into the contracts of any applicable subcontractors.

# 16. QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP

Proposers shall not direct any queries or statements concerning their proposal to the Orange County Procurement Committee or County staff during the selection process, from the time of submission of a proposal until the execution of a contract.

Any proposer who initiates any discussions with staff in any manner other than that described below is subject to disqualification from this procurement.

All questions or concerns regarding this Request for Proposals must be submitted in writing, by email to Linda.Carson@ocfl.net no later than 5:00 PM Monday, November 16, 2015 to the attention of Linda Carson, Procurement Division, referencing the RFP number. When required the Procurement Division will issue an addendum to the Request for Proposals. The addendum will be available on the Internet for access by potential proposers. Proposers are instructed not to contact the initiating division directly. No oral interpretation of this Request for Proposal shall be considered binding. The County shall be bound by information and statements only when such statements are written and executed under the authority of the Procurement Division Manager. You may contact Linda Carson at any time during this process, including during the Black Out Period.

This provision exists solely for the convenience and administrative efficiency of Orange County. No proposer or other third party gains any rights by virtue of this provision or the application thereof, nor shall any proposer or third party have any standing to sue or cause of action arising there from.

#### 17. DEBRIEFING OF PROPOSERS

Not later than thirty (30) days after Board approval of a selection or shortlist, a proposer may submit a written request to the applicable contract administrator or purchasing agent for a debriefing on the evaluation of their proposal. The contract administrator/purchasing agent will schedule a meeting with the Proposer for the debriefing. However, at the Proposer's request, the debriefing may be conducted via telephone conference or the proposer may request a copy of the digital recording of the selection on CD for a \$30.00 fee per CD. The debriefing shall include the following minimum information:

- A. Key requirements of the solicitation.
- B. The overall ranking of all proposals.
- C. The significant weaknesses or deficiencies in the proposal in response to the requirements of the solicitation.
- D. If requested, an explanation of the score received for each evaluation criteria will be provided, including costs, if applicable.
- E. If applicable, a summary of the rationale for award.
- F. Responses to any relevant questions of the Proposer.

Untimely debriefing requests will also be considered.

#### 18. REFERENCE CHECKS

The contact person listed as a reference shall be someone who has personal knowledge of the Proposer's performance during the referenced contract. Contact persons shall have been informed that they are being used as a reference and that the County may be contacting them. More than one person can be listed but all shall have knowledge of the project. DO NOT list principals or officers who will not be able to answer specific questions regarding the project.

Failure of references listed to respond to the County's inquiries may negatively impact the evaluation of the Proposal. The reference shall be the owner or a representative of the owner.

#### 19. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

In accordance with Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes (Public Records Law), and except as may be provided by other applicable State or Federal Law, all proposers should be aware that Request for Proposals or Invitation for Bids and the responses thereto are in the public domain. **Proposers must identify specifically** any information contained in their response which they consider confidential and/or proprietary and which they believe to be exempt from disclosure, **citing specifically the applicable exempting law.** If a Proposer fails to cite the applicable exempting law, we will treat the information as public.

#### 20. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Business Associate Agreement at Attachment No. "B" shall govern all matters necessary to enforce the provisions of the HIPAA Privacy and Security 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 as applicable to this contract.

#### PROPOSAL FORMAT

The County reserves the right to award a contract pursuant to this RFP without further discussion with proposers. Therefore, it is important that each proposal is complete, adheres to the format and instructions contained herein, and is submitted in the most favorable manner possible.

Proposers must respond in the format delineated below and tabbed as applicable.

Submit one (1) original, eight (8) copies and one (1) electronic copy on CD or USB drive for document management purposes. All responses and copies are to be submitted on 8  $\frac{1}{2}$  x 11 inch paper, bound individually. If your response contains any information deemed confidential, in accordance with Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes, provide an additional CD or USB drive with a redacted version of your response labeled REDACTED. Electronic copy shall be in Microsoft Word or Adobe – the most recent software version.

The following information shall be submitted with your proposal. Failure to submit this information in its entirety will negatively impact the evaluation of your proposal.

#### 1. Qualifications of Staff

- A. Provide an organization chart that lists all staff to be assigned to provide the required services and comprehensive resumes for each describing experience, training and education in the required consulting services. Identify staff experience working with governmental entities and list those projects. A total of 2.5 Wraparound Supervisors, 1 Lead Wraparound Specialist, 1 Wraparound Coach, 13 Wraparound Specialists and 11 Family Partners are needed.
- B. It is the expectation of the County that Wraparound Orange will continue as a multi-agency collaboration of children's mental health providers. Therefore each proposer must specify the number and types of positions from the list above in A. that your firm is proposing for. The County will award contracts based on a mix of proposals that will cover all positions.
- C. The supervisor/staff person for this project shall be identified and must provide documentation of having the following as minimal qualifications:
  - 1. **Wraparound Supervisors** shall possess a master's degree and no less than three (3) years of related experience in providing wraparound service delivery, including training and certification in wraparound using the model from the National Wraparound Initiative.
  - Lead Wraparound Specialists shall possess a bachelor's degree, or its equivalent, and no less than two (2) years of related experience in providing wraparound service delivery including training and certification in wraparound using the model from the National Wraparound Initiative.

- 3. Wraparound Coaches shall possess a bachelor's degree, or its equivalent, and no less than two (2) years of related experience in providing wraparound service delivery including training and certification in wraparound services. All Wraparound Coaches shall be certified as a trainer in wraparound and be qualified as a coach from the National Wraparound Initiative.
- 4. **Wraparound Specialists** shall be required to possess a bachelor's degree, or its equivalent and no less than one (1) year experience in providing services to children and families, with preference given to experience in mental health, child welfare or juvenile justice.
- 5. **Family Partners** shall possess a high school diploma or a GED and no less than one (1) year of personal experience as the sole primary care provider of a child with a mental health disorder. Preference shall be given to a parent either raising or having raised a child with a mental health disorder.

# 2. **Qualifications of Firm**

- A. Provide a description of the capability and experience of the applicant organization.
- B. List at least three (3) references, with a minimum of one (1) from governmental entity experience, for which the firm has performed similar work including the contact name, address, telephone number, e-mail address and date of the contract.

# 3. <u>Technical Approach</u>

- A. Briefly describe your understanding and experience in implementation of "System of Care" principles and Wraparound service delivery.
- B. Describe your ability and capacity to fulfill the duties and obligations as stated in the "Scope of Services".
- C. Describe the activities that your agency engages in and/or plans to engage in to further the "System of Care" principals for family-driven and youth-guided care.
- D. Describe the activities that your agency engages in and/or plans to engage in to further the "System of Care" principle of Culturally and Linguistically Competent care.
- E. Provide a written plan that your agency will develop and implement to obtain ongoing financial sustainment of wraparound service delivery after federal dollars have ended with a focus on Florida Medicaid specifically.

Confirm the firm's agreement to meet the minimum requirements of this Request for Proposals.

### 4. Fee Schedule

The COUNTY will pay to the CONSULTANT for the:

- A. Wraparound Specialists a unit fixed-rate amount of \$13.09 per unit not to exceed 4160 units per year per employee. Units may be shared across multiple employees. A unit is one, 15-minute increment of a Core Service so long as the AGENCY is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this Contract for each Wraparound Specialist shall not exceed the amount of \$54,454.40 (Fifty Four Thousand, Four Hundred and Fifty-Four Dollars and Forty Cents), being the maximum compensation to be paid by the COUNTY for services provided under this position.
- B. Lead Wraparound Specialists a unit fixed-rate amount of \$9.45 per unit not to exceed 6240 units per year per employee. A unit is one, 15-minute increment of a Core Service as defined in the Scope of Service so long as the AGENCY is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this Contract and shall not exceed the amount of \$58,968 (Fifty-eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-Eight Dollars) the maximum compensation to be paid by the COUNTY for services provided under this position.
- C. Wraparound Coach a unit fixed-rate amount of \$11.21 per unit not to exceed 6240 units per year per employee. A unit is one, 15-minute increment of a Core Service as defined in the Scope of Service so long as the AGENCY is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this Contract and shall not exceed the amount of \$69,950.40 (Sixty-Nine Thousand, Nine Hundred and Fifty Dollars and Forty Cents) the maximum compensation to be paid by the COUNTY for services provided under this position.
- D. Wraparound Supervisors a unit fixed-rate amount of \$9.92 per unit not to exceed 6240 units per year per employee. A unit is one, 15-minute increment of a Core Service as defined in the Scope of Service so long as the CONSULTANT is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this Contract and shall not exceed the amount of \$61,900.80 (Sixty-One Thousand, Nine Hundred and Zero Dollars and Eighty Cents) the maximum compensation to be paid by the COUNTY for services provided under this position.
- E. Family Partners a unit fixed-rate amount of \$10.22 per unit not to exceed 4160 units per year per employee. A unit is one, 15-minute increment of a Core Service as defined in the Scope of Service so long as the CONSULTANT is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this Contract and shall not exceed the amount of \$42,515.20 (Forty-Two Thousand, Five Hundred and Fifteen Dollars and Twenty Cents) the maximum compensation to be paid by the COUNTY for services provided under this position.

The following information (Items 5 through 7) should be submitted to insure that your proposal is adequately evaluated. Failure to provide this information will negatively impact the score of your proposal.

#### 5. MINORITY/WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE:

- A. Proposers must address how they intend to comply with the Orange County M/WBE Ordinance, No. 94-02 and amended by Ordinance No. 2009-21. The goal of 24% utilization of certified minority/women business enterprise is applicable to this project. The Ordinance also addresses minority/women group employment levels setting goals to encourage each Proposer to maintain 24% minority and women employee workforce levels in specific categories.
- B. M/WBE firms must be Orange County certified at time of submittal of the Proposal and must be certified in the area(s) for which they will be used. If a firm claims to be certified, but is not listed on the County's website, ocfl.net, the Proposer should obtain a copy of their Orange County certificate and/or contact the Business Development Division at 407-836-7317 for verification of certification. Only firms having established offices in the Orlando MSA (Orange, Lake, Seminole and Osceola Counties) are eligible for Orange County certification.
- C. Effective August 1, 2003, the County has implemented a graduation program whereby M/WBE firms designated as graduates can participate in the M/WBE program only on specified projects. A prime Contractor may only use a graduate M/WBE to satisfy M/WBE participation in the following:
  - For Professional Services in which estimated the overall contractual fees to be awarded to the prime in excess of \$500,000.
  - Vertical construction projects in which the total prime contractor's estimate in excess of \$10,000,000.
  - Horizontal construction projects in which the total prime contractor's estimate in excess of \$7,000,000.
  - Other construction projects in which the total estimate is in excess \$7,000,000.

It is the proposing firm's responsibility to insure that graduate M/WBE's are not listed in proposals to meet M/WBE participation requirements on projects in which they are not eligible to participate.

D. The County has established a credit program whereby Proposers are awarded credits to be applied toward meeting the M/WBE goals on certain County projects. Emphasis will be placed on credits for non-County utilization and first-time M/WBE utilization. Proposers are encouraged to contact the Business Development Division in advance of submittal of proposal for information on acquiring and applying credits.

- E. Proposers must submit signed Letter of Intent with their Proposal for all current Orange County certified M/WBE subcontractors identified on the **SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTING M/WBE PARTICIPATION FORM**. These Letters of Intent must indicate the scope of work to be performed by every M/WBE plus the percentage of the contract fees to be contracted to the listed subcontractor.
- F. The awarded prime Contractor's responsibilities and requirements are itemized below:
  - 1. Incorporate a 72-hour prompt payment assurance provision and payment schedule in all contracts between the prime and sub-Contractors.
  - 2. File copies of all executed subcontractor agreement/contracts between the prime and all M/WBE subcontractors on the project to Orange County Business Development Division.
  - 3. The awarded prime Contractor shall furnish written documentation evidencing actual dollars paid to each subcontractor utilized by the prime Contractor on the project. This will include, but not limited to: copies of cancelled checks, approved invoices, and signed affidavits certifying the accuracy of payments so that the County may determine actual participation achieved by the prime Contractor prior to the issuance of final payment.
  - 4. The prime Contractor shall submit an updated quarterly MWBE utilization report and the "Employment Data, Schedule of Minorities and Women" report for all professional service contracts. The required reports are to be submitted to the Business Development Division no later than the fifth day after end of reporting period.
  - 5. The awarded prime Contractor shall not substitute, replace or terminate any M/WBE firm without prior written authorization of the County, nor shall the prime reduce the scope of work or monetary value of a subcontractor without written authorization of the County. The prime Contractor shall notify the Business Development Division of any additional awards to the M/WBE firm on the prime Contractor's team and the addition of any new M/WBE firm to the prime Contractor's team on that project.
  - 6. The prime Contractor shall expeditiously advise all M/WBE's and the Business Development Division of all change orders, contract modifications, additions and deletions to any and all contracts issued to the M/WBE firm on their team.

Execution of the contract between Orange County and the Proposer shall be contingent upon the filing of executed contracts between the Proposer and the M/WBE subs listed on the SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTING - M/WBE PARTICIPATION FORM with the Business Development Division.

Proposers are expressly prohibited from substituting subcontractors projected to perform five percent (5%) or more of the overall work as stated in the written Proposal. Such substitution, for any reason, after opening of the Proposal, and prior to award by the County, shall result in disqualification of the Proposal from further consideration for award, except in extraordinary circumstances. Examples of such circumstances are the subcontractors' firm going out of business; death of the owner of the firm; or the inability of the sub-Contractor to perform the work specified. Should such an occurrence arise, it must be substantiated, and the sub- substitution approved, by the County prior to contact execution.

Requests for substitution of subcontractors who are <u>cumulatively</u> scheduled to perform less than five percent (5%) of the over-all scope of services <u>may</u> be considered <u>only</u> prior to final scoring of Proposals by the Procurement Committee. Such requests for substitution must be in writing accompanied by a written withdrawal from the originally listed subcontractor. Failure to comply with these requirements shall result in disqualification of the Proposal from further consideration for award. The Procurement Committee shall be the sole determinant regarding acceptance/rejection of requested substitutions.

The proposer understands that this RFP does not constitute an agreement or contract with the Proposers.

Any Proposers who submits a Proposal to the County with any information that is determined by the County, in its sole opinion, to be substantially inaccurate, misleading, exaggerated, or incorrect may be disqualified from consideration.

# 6. <u>LOCATION FORM</u>

The Location Form determining proximity to the project site shall be completed and submitted with your proposal in order to receive credit for proximity to worksite.

#### 7. <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORM</u>

The attached Conflict/Non-Conflict of Interest and Litigation Statement (with any applicable attachments) shall be completed and submitted with your proposal.

# 8. <u>ETHICS COMPLIANCE</u>

The following forms are included in this solicitation and shall be completed and submitted with your proposal as indicated below:

A. **Orange County Specific Project Expenditure Report** -The purpose of this form is to document any expenses incurred by a lobbyist for the purposes described in Section 2-351, Orange County Code. This form shall be completed and submitted with any bid, proposal or other response to an Orange County solicitation. The Proposer shall not be awarded a contract unless this form has been completed and submitted.

B. Relationship Disclosure Form – The purpose of this form is to document any relationships between a bidder, proposer or responder to an Orange County solicitation and the Mayor or any other member of the Orange County Board of County Commissioners. This form shall be completed and submitted with your proposal.

No contract award will be made unless these forms have been completed and submitted. Any questions concerning this form shall be addressed to the purchasing agent or contract administrator identified in the applicable solicitation. Also, a listing of the most frequently asked questions concerning these forms is attached to each for your information.

### 9. AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES/NEGOTIATORS FORM

The Authorized Signatories/Negotiators Form is attached and shall be completed and submitted with your proposal.

#### 10. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE FORM

The Drug-Free Workplace Form is attached and shall be completed and submitted with your proposal.

# 11. <u>VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT STATUS</u>

Prior to the employment of any person under this contract, the Contractor shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor during the contract term, and an express requirement that Contractors include in such subcontracts the requirement that subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to the state contract utilize the E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the contract term. For more information on this process, please refer to United States Citizenship and Immigration Service site at: <a href="http://www.uscis.gov/portal/site/uscis.">http://www.uscis.gov/portal/site/uscis.</a>

# Only those employees determined eligible to work within the United States shall be employed under the contract.

Therefore, by submission of a proposal in response to this solicitation, the Contractor affirms that all employees in the above categories will undergo everification before placement on this contract. The Contractor shall commit to comply with this requirement by completing the E- Verification certification, attached to this solicitation.

# 12. <u>BONUS POINTS FOR HIRING OF WELFARE TRANSITION AND DISLOCATED WORKERS</u>

Proposers may be awarded a maximum of five (5) bonus points for a commitment to hire welfare transition and dislocated workers residing in the Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) as fulltime employees. One point will be awarded for each new fulltime hire up to and including a maximum of five (5) points. To be eligible for bonus points, Proposers must complete the attached

Form WR- Section I, listing the number of welfare recipients to be hired fulltime and submit with their proposal. Bonus points shall only be awarded once for any one individual hired. Individuals hired may be employed in any position within the firm but must be hired on a fulltime basis.

Within five (5) days after the contract award, the Proposer shall contact the Business Development Division (BDD) Liaison at (407) 836-7317 to assist with meeting this requirement.

The failure of the Contractor to comply with these hiring commitments after contract award shall be grounds for termination of the contract for default.

During performance of the contract, the Contractor shall take appropriate steps to ensure that individuals hired under this program are retained. However, if it becomes necessary to replace an employee, the Contractor shall contact the BDD Liaison. At its discretion, the County may periodically request submission of certified payrolls to confirm the employment status of program participants.

# 13. <u>BONUS POINTS FOR UTILIZING REGISTERED SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN FIRMS</u>

Additional point consideration will be available for proposers who utilize registered Service-Disabled Veteran (SDV) business enterprises and will receive the following point allocation:

- A. Registered SDV business enterprise proposers competing as a prime contractor shall receive five (5) points;
- B. Registered SDV proposers with registered SDV business enterprise sub-Contractors on their team shall receive two points for each sub-Contractor up to a maximum of ten (10) points;
- C. Proposers with registered SDV business enterprise sub-Contractors on their team shall receive two points for each registered SDV sub-Contractor up to a maximum of 5 SDV sub-Contractors for a maximum of ten (10) points.
- D. All SDV firms must be Orange County registered at the time of submittal of the proposal and must be registered in the area(s) for which they will be used. If a firm claims to be registered, but is not listed on the County's website, ocfl.net, the Proposer should obtain a copy of their Orange County registration and/or contact the Business Development Division at 407-836-7317 for verification of registration. Only firms having established offices in the Orlando MSA (Orange, Lake, Seminole and Osceola counties) are eligible for Orange County registration.
- E. Proposers shall submit signed Letters of Intent with their proposal. Proposers for all current Orange County registered subcontractors identified on the **SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTING SDV PARTICIPATION FORM**. These letters of Intent must indicate the scope of work to be performed by every registered SDV plus the percentage of the contract fees to be contracted to the listed subcontractor.

- F. The Contractor's responsibilities and requirements are itemized below:
  - Incorporate a 72-hour prompt payment assurance provision and payment schedule in all contracts between the prime and sub-Contractors.
  - 2. File copies of all executed subcontractor agreement/contracts between the prime and all SDV subcontractors on the project to Orange County Business Development Division.
  - 3. The Contractor shall furnish written documentation evidencing actual dollars paid to each subcontractor utilized by the prime Contractor on the project. This will include, but not limited to: copies of cancelled checks, approved invoices, and signed affidavits certifying the accuracy of payments so that the County may determine actual participation achieved by the prime Contractor prior to the issuance of final payment.
  - 4. The Contractor shall submit an updated quarterly SDV utilization report and the "Employment Data, Schedule of Minorities and Women" report for all professional service contracts. The required reports are to be submitted to the Business Development Division no later than the fifth day after end of reporting period.
  - 5. The Contractor shall not substitute, replace or terminate any SDV firm without prior written authorization of the County, nor shall the Contractor reduce the scope of work or monetary value of a subcontractor without written authorization of the County. The Contractor shall notify the Business Development Division of any additional awards to the SDV firm on the Contractor's team and the addition of any new SDV firm to the Contractor's team on that project.
  - 6. The Contractor shall expeditiously advise all SDV's and the Business Development Division of all change orders, contract modifications, additions and deletions to any and all contracts issued to the SDV firm(s) on their team.

Execution of the contract between Orange County and the Proposer shall be contingent upon the filing of executed contracts between the Proposer and the SDV subs listed on the SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTING - SDV PARTICIPATION FORM with the Business Development Division.

Proposers are expressly prohibited from substituting subcontractors projected to perform five percent (5%) or more of the overall work as stated in the written Proposal. Such substitution, for any reason, after opening of the Proposal, and prior to award by the County, shall result in disqualification of the Proposal from further consideration for award, except in extraordinary circumstances. Examples of such circumstances are the subcontractors' firm going out of business; death of the owner of the firm; or the inability of the sub-Contractor to perform the work specified. Should such an occurrence arise, it must be substantiated, and the sub- substitution approved, by the County prior to contact execution.

Requests for substitution of subcontractors who are <u>cumulatively</u> scheduled to perform less than five percent (5%) of the over-all scope of services <u>may</u> be considered <u>only</u> prior to final scoring of Proposals by the Procurement Committee. Such requests for substitution must be in writing accompanied by a written withdrawal from the originally listed subcontractor. Failure to comply with these requirements shall result in disqualification of the Proposal from further consideration for award. The Procurement Committee shall be the sole determinant regarding acceptance/rejection of requested substitutions.

The proposer understands that this RFP does not constitute an agreement or contract with the Proposers.

Any Proposers who submits a Proposal to the County with any information that is determined by the County, in its sole opinion, to be substantially inaccurate, misleading, exaggerated, or incorrect may be disqualified from consideration.

When considering two (2) or more proposals, or replies for the procurement of goods or services, where at least one is from a registered SDV business enterprise but which are otherwise equal with respect to all relevant considerations, including price, quality, and service, the Procurement Division Manager shall award such procurement or contract to the registered SDV business enterprise.

If a registered SDV, entitled to the vendor preference and one (1) or more other M/WBE businesses also entitled to this preference, or another vendor preference provided by the Orange County Code, submits bids, proposals, or replies for the procurement of goods or services which are otherwise equal with respect to all relevant considerations, including price, quality and service, then the Procurement Division Manager will award the procurement or contract to the business having the smallest net worth.

#### 14. **SELECTION - CRITERIA**

CRITERIA	<u>WEIGHT</u>
Qualifications of Staff Qualification of Firm Technical Approach M/WBE Utilization	20 20 40 10
Location	10
TOTAL	100
Welfare Transition and Dislocated Workers Hires Registered SDV SubContractor Hires Registered SDV Prime proposers	5 Bonus Points 10 Bonus Points 5 Bonus Points

#### SCOPE OF SERVICES

#### Introduction:

Orange County, Florida ("County"), through its Health Services Department, Mental Health and Homeless Division, has completed a six-year federally funded project entitled "Wraparound Orange" (hereinafter referred to as the "Project"). The Project was originally funded through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration ("SAMHSA") for the development and ongoing implementation of a comprehensive delivery system of care based upon the federally recognized Child and Adolescent Service System Program (hereinafter collectively referred to as "System of Care").

The Project was implemented for children and youth ranging from birth to the age of fourteen (14), who have been diagnosed with a "serious emotional disturbance," and their respective families, in accordance with the requirements of the Grantee. The Project, with the cooperation of a community of providers and stakeholders located within Orange County, is managed under the governance structure of the Wraparound Orange management team (hereinafter referred to as "Management Team").

The County has been awarded a federal grant from SAMHSA to expand the services under the Project to Orange County youth through the age of twenty-one (21) (hereinafter referred to as "Grant"). As the sub-recipient of the Grant, Orange County (hereinafter "Grantee") will continue to provide funding to community partner agencies for Wraparound Services as part of the overall Project (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Agency Partners" or "Partners").

- **I. Definitions.** Unless otherwise indicated, the following terms shall be defined as follows:
  - Α. Children, youth, and young adults with a serious emotional disturbance shall mean those children, youth, or young adults, from birth through the age of twenty-one (21), who currently, or at any time during the past year, have had a diagnosable mental, behavioral, or emotional disorder of sufficient duration to meet the diagnostic criteria specified within the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (DSM) IV or DSM V; and that resulted in functional impairment which substantially interferes with or limits the child's role or functioning in the family, school, or community activities, as may be evidenced by events, including, but not limited to, the following: an arrest, a civil citation, a law enforcement contact in the past twelve (12) months, suspensions or expulsions from school, truancy, running away, or any other events which result in the child, youth or young adult becoming at risk for out of home placement into a juvenile justice facility, a residential mental health placement or child welfare placement (foster home or group home).
  - B. **Project Director** shall mean the Orange County staff member responsible for grant administration and contract management, which shall include facilitation of all strategic planning initiatives.
  - C. Clinical Director shall mean the Orange County staff member responsible for day-to-day operations of the Wraparound Project service delivery, which shall include coaching and supervising duties.

- D. **Service Provider** shall mean the professional providing Services under this Contract who meets the required educational, applicable licensing and/or certification, and work experience requirements for the specific position, as more specifically described in Section IV of this Contract.
- E. **System of Care Concept and Philosophy** shall refer to the publication by the National Technical Assistance Center for Children's Mental Health, as may be amended or revised from time to time. A copy of which is available at <a href="http://www.tapartnership.org/docs/UpdatingTheSOCConcept2010.pdf">http://www.tapartnership.org/docs/UpdatingTheSOCConcept2010.pdf</a>
- F. **Wraparound** shall mean an intensive, individualized care planning and management process which aims to achieve positive outcomes by providing a structured, creative and individualized team planning process that results in plans that are effective and relevant to the child/youth and family, as defined by standards established by the National Wraparound Initiative in the NWI Resource Guide to Wraparound, as may be amended or revised from time to time. A copy of which is available at <a href="http://nwi.pdx.edu/NWI-book//">http://nwi.pdx.edu/NWI-book//</a>

# II. Wraparound Orange Service Philosophy.

- A. Wraparound Orange provides Wraparound services (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Wraparound Services" or "Services") to those children, youth, and young adults, and their families, residing within Orange County who meet the eligibility requirements (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Service Recipients" or "Recipients"). Services are provided for Service Recipients by Service Providers through a structure of coaching and supervision.
- B. The Grantee, through the Project, funds Services through multiple children's mental health serving agencies to collaboratively offer Wraparound Services for eligible Recipients. Grantee is seeking Wraparound Service delivery models (hereinafter referred to as "Program") capable of working in collaboration with the Management Team, Agency Partners, and other Grantee designated entities to provide Wraparound Services for eligible Recipients, in accordance with the System of Care, Wraparound Orange objectives, and the requirements set forth in this Contract.

# III. Eligibility Requirements and Agency Responsibilities.

# A. Eligibility Requirements.

- 1. The Grantee shall be responsible for confirming eligibility for each proposed Recipient seeking Services under this Contract.
- 2. Upon determination of eligibility by the Grantee, Recipient cases shall be assigned to the Agency staff for follow-up and distribution of Services. The Agency shall accept no Recipient case and provide no Services under this Contract until eligibility has been established by the Grantee. Confirmation of such eligibility and case assignments occur electronically

through the addition of the case in the electronic medical records system IRIS.

# B. Agency Responsibilities.

- 1. The Agency shall ensure its compliance to the Grantee with the following:
  - a. The Agency shall ensure that all Services are provided by Service Providers, meeting the qualifications set forth in this Contract, who demonstrate the necessary knowledge in the coordination and provision of those Services contemplated under this Contract.
  - b. The Agency shall ensure that all Recipient files provide adequate documentation of the respective Services provided, dates of Service, and consistency with the Wraparound Orange program requirements.
  - c. The Agency shall provide Recipients with Services through a continuum of care to address the individual's specific needs.
  - d. The Agency shall demonstrate a method for the provision of Services in cases of emergency occurring outside of regular business hours.
  - e. The Agency shall maintain documentation demonstrating that funds received under this Grant (hereinafter referred to as "Grant Funds" or "Funds") are used only for those Services allowable under this Contract.
  - f. The Agency shall submit to the Grantee a complete list of Service Providers to be used for Services under this Contract. The Grantee reserves the right to have any individual deemed unacceptable for the provision of Services, in its sole discretion. The Grantee agrees that approval of Service Providers shall not be unreasonably withheld.
  - g. The Agency shall maintain personnel files for each employee. Personnel files shall include documentation regarding background screenings, trainings, annual performance evaluations, disciplinary records (if any), and evidence of qualifications for the applicable position held, all of which shall be in accordance with Grantee acceptable standards. The Agency shall provide copies of employee personnel files to the Grantee upon request. For vacant positions, the Agency shall submit the above for approval to the Grantee and obtain approval to hire new candidates.
  - h. The Agency shall ensure that all employees providing Services under this Contract are provided with any necessary office supplies and a lap top computer with printer and internet accessibility.
  - i. The Agency shall ensure that all Service Providers are provided a cellular telephone with data capability. The Agency shall not require Service Providers to utilize their personal cellular phone in the performance of their duties relating to this Contract.

- j. The Agency shall ensure that each Service Provider possess a valid State of Florida driver's license and a working private vehicle. Such vehicles shall be maintained in a safe and working manner. and shall be registered within the State of Florida. The Service Provider shall procure and maintain automobile insurance, with coverage limits acceptable to the County. Evidence of a valid driver's license, car registration, and adequate insurance coverage shall be to the Agency, as applicable, and shall be made available to the Grantee and County upon request. Under no circumstances shall the Agency authorize, permit, approve, consent to, or otherwise allow Service Recipients, or their family members, to be transported within a private vehicle of any Agency employee or Service Provider failing to meet the requirements set forth in this section. In such event, the Agency shall provide payment for any such required transportation services through a licensed transportation service provider.
- k. The Agency shall reimburse Service Providers for mileage incurred as a result of providing Services under this Contract utilizing their own private vehicle. Mileage reimbursement shall be in an amount set forth by the Agency and acceptable to the Grantee.
- I. The Agency shall immediately inform, via telephone, the Clinical Director and/or the Project Director of the Wraparound Program of all critical incident, emergency situations, and other reportable incidents, as required by Wraparound Orange procedures and applicable reporting requirements in accordance with federal law and Florida Statutes.
- m. The Agency shall inform the Clinical Director and/or Project Director for Wraparound Orange of all complaints and/or grievances received. Notification shall be made via e-mail within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt of any compliant and/or grievance by the Agency. All complaints and/or grievances shall be addressed by the Agency in accordance with its written policies and procedures, as approved by the Grantee.
- n. The Agency shall designate representative(s), not working as employees of Wraparound Orange, to attend ninety-percent (90%) of all Grantee scheduled meetings including, but not limited to, the following monthly meetings: (i) Governing Board meetings; (ii) Wraparound Orange Management Team meetings; (iii) Evaluation meetings; and (iv) Social Marketing meetings, established by the Grantee for the success of the Project. Designated representatives for the Governing Board and Management Team are to be held by individuals in administrative positions or persons with decision-making authority for the Agency to allow decision making with regard to Agency policies and procedures.
- The Agency shall perform Level II background screenings for all employees, in accordance with Florida law and in compliance with those standards established by the Florida Department of Children

- and Families. Results of such screening shall be retained in the respective employee file and shall be made available to the Grantee upon request.
- p. Agency shall provide a functional computer system with Internet browser (Explorer 6.0 or greater) to each Wraparound Staff which is adequate to provide the necessary requirements set forth in this Contract.
- q. Agency shall obtain and maintain high-speed internet access and a corporate e-mail account to each Wraparound Staff, with the capacity to transit attachments and data files as required by the Grantee. Agency shall be solely responsible for any cost incurred relating to the Internet connection, including phone/data lines and associated monthly service.

# 2. Employee Training.

- a. The Agency shall be responsible for the establishment of a formal training program for the initial and ongoing training of all employees to ensure the delivery of quality Services under this Contract.
- b. The Agency shall implement the employee training program (hereinafter "Training") through training program plans (hereinafter "Training Plans") for ongoing staff development and training of staff. Initial Training Plans shall be established within seven (7) days of hire and then annually thereafter. Maintenance of licensure and certification for Service Providers, where applicable, shall be the responsibility of the respective employee. Training shall be used to enhance knowledge.
- c. The Agency shall ensure that all contractual employees maintain certification, licensure, and Training requirements in accordance with the Training Plans, and as may be otherwise required by the Agency.
- d. The Grantee shall provide all staff with initial and recertification training as indicated below:
  - i. Wraparound Orientation (to include review of procedures) two (2) hours;
  - ii. Wraparound and System of Care Training thirty-two (32 hours;
  - iii. Wraparound Orange forms training four (4) hours;
  - iv. Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths Training six (6) hours; and
  - v. Cultural and Linguistic Competence Training four (4) hours.

- The Agency shall be responsible for all other trainings not otherwise listed above.
- e. Documentation of training shall be included in each individualized Training Plan and shall be signed and dated by both the employee and their respective Supervisor. All documentation of training attendance and completion shall be included in the employee's personnel file and made available to the Grantee upon request.

# 3. Employee Records, Evaluations, and Position Vacancies.

- a. The Agency shall maintain employee records in accordance with its policies and procedures and the requirements set forth in this Contract. Copies of all employee records shall be available to the Grantee, or its designee, for inspection and auditing, as may be required under the Department of Health and Human Services Administration ("HHS") requirements.
- b. The Agency shall perform employee evaluations on an annual basis and shall include a copy of all such evaluations in the employee's personnel file. The Agency shall incorporate feedback from the Grantee concerning the respective employee's performance.
- c. Any employee receiving disciplinary action shall have the same reflected in their respective personnel file. The employee's personnel file shall clearly reflect the violation, disciplinary action taken, and outcome. The Grantee shall be notified of any disciplinary action taken as a result of an employee's failure to comply with any of the requirements associated with this Contract and any follow-up actions taken by the Agency regarding the violation. In the event the Grantee deems the disciplinary action against such employee to be ineffective or otherwise detrimental to the success of the Wraparound Orange Project, the Grantee reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to have the Agency prohibit any Services connected with the Wraparound Orange Project or this Contract performed by such employee. Failure by the Agency to comply with the Grantee's demand for removal of an employee from his or her assignment of providing Services under this Contract may be deemed a breach of this Contract and could result in the denial of payment for Services by the employee or possible termination of this Contract.
- d. The Agency shall advise the Grantee of any vacancies within the Agency as they may relate to the Services to be performed under this Contract. Such vacancies shall include those resulting from termination based upon Grantee demand or those vacancies as a result of attrition. During the Agency's hiring process used to fill any such vacancies, the Agency agrees to permit a representative of the Grantee to attend employment interviews and provide feedback. The Agency shall take into consideration the feed-back of the Grantee when selecting any new employees. In the event the

Agency selects a candidate which the Grantee deems unsuitable to provide Services under this Contract, the Agency agrees to forego using that particular employee to perform any Services under this Contract. The Grantee shall not deny the use of any proposed Agency employee without reasonable cause.

#### Employees.

- a) Agency shall require all licensed professionals to have appropriate training and experience in the field in which he/she practices and shall possess and remain in good standing for all required licenses and occupational licenses in accordance with Florida State laws.
- b) Agency shall ensure that its employees and subcontractors or assigns, if applicable, abide by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"), State and federal laws and local regulations, as well as all ethical standards consistent with those established in that profession.
- c) Agency's policies and procedures shall include a mechanism by which the Agency shall take appropriate progressive disciplinary actions for Agency staff members or Wraparound Staff found to have violated such policies and procedures.
- d) Agency shall maintain records of employees by job classification, name, date(s) of employment, ethnicity, gender, and age. Such records shall be maintained in accordance with Article IV of this Contract.
- e) Agency shall train their staff and Wraparound Staff and establish a written training plan for all staff and Wraparound Staff to ensure proper training in HIPAA, substance abuse and mental health disorders, and associated services and resources. A copy of Agency's HIPAA regulations shall be provided to each employee and Wraparound Staff with written acknowledgement of receiving such regulations.
- f) Agency shall ensure that all staff and Wraparound Staff have sufficient education, knowledge, skills, and experience to competently serve those Clients in need of substance abuse and mental health disorder assistance on a 24-hour, seven-day-a-week basis.
- g) All new Agency employees and Wraparound Staff shall undergo initial orientation and training and shall sign a confidentiality pledge acknowledging their awareness and understanding of such HIPAA and other federal and State laws, regulations, and policies.
- h) Agency shall ensure that all staff and Wraparound Staff participate in ongoing annual training which shall include, at a minimum,

confidentiality/HIPAA, age and cultural competency, community and social support resources relating to or associated with substance abuse and mental health disorders, risk management, process improvement, customer services, ethics, homeless information updates, and an update of associated resources and funded services.

i) Training plans shall list all topics for training and the total hours of Agency staff and Family Partner time devoted to development training during each Grant term. Plans shall be updated as appropriate and submitted to the Grantee's office.

#### 4. Miscellaneous.

a. Petty Cash Fund. The Agency shall provide a petty cash fund ("Petty Cash") for each Wraparound Specialist in the amount of at least \$50.00 (Fifty Dollars) per month. Petty Cash shall be used to purchase food items, small incentives, or gifts for celebrations for the Service Recipients enrolled in Wraparound Orange. The Agency shall determine the manner in which to distribute the Petty Cash funds and will implement procedures for such distribution. The Agency shall assume full responsibility for the management and distribution of Petty Cash funds and shall ensure that receipts are collected and retained as they relate to any purchases made with Petty Cash. Copies of such receipts shall be provided to the Grantee upon request.

#### b. Case Transition / Closure.

- i. Case transition / closure is a process by which Service Recipients are dis-enrolled from actively receiving Services.
- ii. All attempts to contact a Recipient and notifications about a case transition / closure shall be communicated to the Service Provider's assigned Wraparound Supervisor as well as being documented in the Recipient's electronic file. Documentation shall include reason(s) for closure, as well as Supervisor approval. No case may be transitioned or closed without prior Supervisor approval.
- iii. Reasons for case transition/closure may include, but not be limited to, any of the following:
  - Recipient has become ineligible for Services;
  - Recipient no longer needs Services;
  - Recipient decides to discontinue Services;
  - Service Provider is unable to contact the Recipient for a determined period of time; or
  - Recipient if found to be improperly utilizing the Service or is otherwise asked to leave the Program.

#### 5. **Deliverables:**

- a. **Productivity for Services Reports.** The Grantee shall measure service productivity of the Agency for Wraparound staff (Wraparound Specialists and Family Partners) through the submittal of the respective monthly Invoice (See Attachment C). which includes information from the Service Minute Reports (hereinafter "SM Reports") "IRIS". The Agency shall not be required to file the SM Reports with the Grantee but shall be required to make them available for Grantee review in order to measure the productivity of Service Providers in accordance with the requirements of HHS, Wraparound Orange goals, and the requirements of this Contract.
- b. Productivity for Supervision and Coaching. The Grantee shall measure service productivity of the Agency for Wraparound staff (Supervisors, Leads and Coaches) through the submittal of the respective monthly Invoice (See Attachment C), which includes back-up documentation as established by the Agency. The Agency shall not be required to file the back-up documentation with the Grantee but shall be required to make them available for Grantee review in order to measure the productivity of Service Providers in accordance with the requirements of HHS, Wraparound Orange goals, and the requirements of this Contract.
- c. The Agency shall submit all invoices and/or requests for reimbursement/invoice to the Grantee by the fifteen (15<sup>th</sup>) day of each month. In the event the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) day falls on a weekend or legal holiday, submittals shall be made by the next business day. The Agency understanding that any unspent Funds from any given Grant year shall not be carried forward to the following Grant year.
- d. Invoices shall be submitted on the applicable Monthly Invoice Form specific for each Service Provider ("Invoice Form"). All Invoice Forms shall be signed by both the Service provider and their respective Supervisor confirming the Service billing information. Invoice Forms that have not been signed by both the Service Provider and their respective Supervisor shall be rejected as being incomplete and returned to the Agency.
- e. All Invoice Forms shall be completed in their entirety prior to submittal to the Grantee for review and payment.

# IV. Service Providers Roles and Responsibilities.

# A. Wraparound Specialist.

1. **Roles and Responsibilities.** Wraparound Specialists shall be responsible for the following:

- a. Maintaining a caseload of 10-12 families with a minimum of ten (10) hours of service contact per month per family to include bi-weekly face-to-face contact with the youth and family at times and locations that are convenient to the family (including weekend and evening hours).
- b. Establishing the initial contact with the family within one (1) business day of referral/case assignment and meet with the youth and family for an initial visit within five (5) calendar days of referral. Exceptions will be fully documented in a progress note.
- c. Documenting all contacts relating to the case in progress notes in the IRIS system within 48-hours of completion of the contact.
- d. Participating in all Wraparound Orange required trainings, inservices, clinical supervision meetings, and as otherwise required by the Agency and/or Grantee.
- e. Complying with all procedures of Wraparound Orange, as set forth in the Wraparound procedures, a copy of which is found at <a href="http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/Childrens-MentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx">http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/Childrens-MentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx</a>

#### B. Wraparound Supervisor.

- 1. **Roles and Responsibilities.** Wraparound Supervisors shall be responsible for the following:
  - a. Providing technically competent and motivational support to staff, youth and their families.
  - b. Working with staff, through the Agency's adopted Training Plan, to address stress, burnout, and other psychological aspects, as they relate to the roles and responsibilities, and to assist staff to stay within the scope of services.
  - c. Providing wraparound coaching and supervision on all open cases no less than every ninety (90) days.
  - d. Meeting regularly with staff to discuss issues relating to the documentation standards.
  - e. Facilitate trainings for new staff and community partners in all Wraparound trainings as identified in Section 2d.
  - f. Provide mentoring for new and existing staff in wraparound service delivery by attending meetings and appointments.
  - g. Review documentation of assigned wraparound staff for accuracy and thoroughness.
  - h. Provide coverage for wraparound staff, as needed for staff illness, vacations, etc.
  - i. Maintaining a professional demeanor.

- j. Documenting all youth and family related supervision on the Wraparound Orange coaching form, maintained separately from the youth and family's electronic case file. Forms will be submitted on a quarterly basis to the Clinical Director within ten (10) days after the end of each quarter (Oct.-Dec., Jan.-March, April-June, and July-Aug.).
- k. Comply with all procedures of Wraparound Orange, as set forth in the Wraparound procedures, a copy of which is found at <a href="http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx">http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx</a>
- I. Other duties as assigned by the Project Director and/or Clinical Director as needed for the success of the Project.

#### C. Lead Wraparound Specialist.

- 1. **Roles and Responsibilities.** Lead Wraparound Specialists shall be responsible for the following:
  - a. Maintain a caseload of 1-5 families with a minimum of ten (10) hours of service contact per month per family to include bi-weekly face-to-face contact with the youth and family at times and locations that are convenient to the family (including weekend and evening hours).
  - b. Provide direct supervision, oversight, support and feedback to Wraparound staff that are contracted to provide service delivery. This includes ensuring compliance with all Wraparound Orange procedures and contractual requirements.
  - c. Facilitate training events for new staff and community partners in all Wraparound training as identified in Section 2d.
  - d. Provide mentoring for new and existing staff in Wraparound service delivery by attending meetings and appointments.
  - e. Review documentation of assigned Wraparound staff for accuracy and thoroughness.
  - f. Provide coverage for Wraparound staff, as needed for staff illness, vacations, etc.
  - g. Maintain a professional demeanor.
  - h. Other duties as assigned by the Project Director and/or Clinical Director as needed for the success of the Project.
  - i. Comply with all procedures of Wraparound Orange, as set forth in the Wraparound procedures, a copy of which is found at <a href="http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx">http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx</a>

### D. Wraparound Coach.

- **1. Roles and Responsibilities.** Wraparound Coach shall be responsible for the following:
  - a. Provide direct observation of all wraparound specialists and family partners in their role of implementing wraparound services and give written feedback on the fidelity of the model.
  - b. Design training modules to increase wraparound fidelity based on the needs of staff.
  - c. Facilitate trainings for new staff and community partners in all Wraparound trainings as identified in Section 2d.
  - d. Facilitate Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) groups for youth and young adults ages 17-21 in the community on a quarterly basis utilizing standards set forth by WRAP as found at <a href="http://mentalhealthrecovery.com/">http://mentalhealthrecovery.com/</a>.
  - e. Provide mentoring for new and existing staff in wraparound service delivery by attending meetings and appointments.
  - f. Review documentation of assigned wraparound staff for accuracy and thoroughness.
  - g. Provide coverage for wraparound staff, as needed for staff illness, vacations, etc.
  - h. Maintain a professional demeanor.
  - i. Comply with all procedures of Wraparound Orange, as set forth in the Wraparound procedures, a copy of which is found at <a href="http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx">http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx</a>
  - j. Other duties as assigned by the Project Director and/or Clinical Director as needed for the success of the Project.

# E. Family Partner.

- 1. Roles and Responsibilities. Family Partner shall be responsible for the following:
  - a. Maintaining a caseload of 10-12 families with a minimum of ten (10) hours of service contact per month per family to include weekly face-to-face contact with the youth and family at times and locations that are convenient to the family (including weekend and evening hours).
  - b. Establishing the initial contact with the family within one (1) business day of referral/case assignment and meet with the youth and family for an initial visit within five (5) calendar days of referral. Exceptions will be fully documented in a progress note.

- c. Documenting all contacts relating to the case in progress notes in the IRIS system within 48-hours of completion of the contact.
- k. Participating in all Wraparound Orange required trainings, in-services, clinical supervision meetings, and as otherwise required by the Agency and/or Grantee.
- I. Comply with all procedures of Wraparound Orange, as set forth in the Wraparound procedures, a copy of which is found at <a href="http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx">http://www.orangecountyfl.net/FamiliesHealthSocialSvcs/ChildrensMentalHealth/WraparoundOrangeGovernanceCommittees.aspx</a>

#### F. General Bilingual Requirements.

- a. The Grantee may require that a vacant Agency position be filled with a bilingual employee, which may include English/Spanish or English/Haitian/French-Creole. This request shall be submitted to the AGENCY in writing.
- b. The Agency shall ensure that all employees are tested for language proficiency skills with the result of a high level of proficiency in both languages for both speaking and writing skills. The Agency shall provide evidence of such competency to the Grantee upon request.

# VII. Data Quality Management.

- A. **Quality Management**. The Agency shall have in place a written quality assurance and continuous quality improvement process and quality management plan that ensures ongoing quality assurance activities.
- B. **Service Unit Definition**. 1 unit = 15 minute encounter. Encounters can be face-to-face and non-face-to-face contact.
- C. Outcome Measures and Indicators. At a minimum, all Service Providers shall adopt the outcome and indicator established by the Agency in accordance with the Grantee requirements as set forth in the Wraparound Orange guidelines. Productivity for Services Reports provided under this Contract shall be measured in accordance with the MISM Report, as described in Article III B. 5 of this Contract.

#### D. Service Documentation.

- a. Service Providers are expected to utilize measured program and service delivery outcomes in order to enhance service delivery. Performance improvement and corrective action plans closing the identified performance gaps shall be provided to the Grantee on a quarterly basis. Submission dates shall be as established by the Grantee. Failure to provide the required reports shall be considered as non-compliance with this Contract and may result in the withholding of payment for Services, breach of contract and/ or termination of this Contract.
- b. The Agency shall report Service activities on a monthly basis by the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) day of the month, or as additionally requested by the Grantee.

- Should the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) day fall on a weekend or legal holiday, said reports shall be due on the next business day.
- c. Upon Grantee request, the Agency shall provide documentation that Grant Funds under this Contract are used only to support eligible activities.
- d. Requirements. The Agency shall possess appropriate occupational and business tax receipts by the county in which they are located and by the incorporated areas within the county, if applicable. Receipts shall be displayed prominently in the Agency's premises.

# VIII. Recordkeeping and Accounting Standards.

- A. The federal requirements for receiving a grant are that organizations receiving funding have an adequate accounting system. Agencies (sub-recipients) who receive Grant Funds shall demonstrate that they can adequately track, manage, and account for Grant Funds.
- B. The Agency's financial management system shall have the capacity to segregate direct costs from indirect costs; establish separate cost centers for each service category to capture allowable (reimbursable) costs; establish separate cost centers for each service category to capture unallowable costs, and the value of donated goods and services, if applicable.
- C. In addition, the Agency shall incorporate a timekeeping system that identified employees' time and effort by Service, funding source for each Service category, and documentation for cost allocation.
- D. The Agency shall provide monthly postings and closing of account records.
- E. The Agency shall be responsible for maintaining an acceptable recordkeeping system which organizes and summarizes transactions in a form that provides the basis to maintain adequate documentation to support all costs charged to the associated funding source.
- F. The Agency shall have a basic accounting system which identifies the total cost of the Agency's organization, and the Agency shall make full use of the Agency's financial accounting system to separate costs into cost centers.
- G. The Agency shall be mindful in the establishment of cost centers in its accounting system so as to minimize adjustments and allow many expenses to be assigned directly to the appropriate cost center.
- H. Any cost analysis system shall involve cost cooperation between the fiscal and program staff.
- I. Consultation and agreement with organization officials on the structure of the general ledger accounts and the treatment of each type of cost will facilitate appropriate allocation of costs.
- J. Service categories shall be as defined by the Grantee in the Contract to allow for Service category cost identification. All activities involved in delivering the service category shall then be identified so that costs related to those activities can be captured in the service category cost center.

# IX. Billing Requirements:

- A. Billing Requirements:
- B. The Agency shall submit all invoices and/or requests for reimbursement/invoice to the Grantee by the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) day of each month. In the event the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) day falls on a weekend or legal holiday, submittals shall be made by the next business day. The Agency understanding that any unspent Funds from any given Grant year shall not be carried forward to the following Grant year.
- C. The Agency will not receive payment for any work found by the Grantee to be unsatisfactory, or performed in violation of federal, state, or local law, ordinance or regulation.
- D. The Agency (sub-recipient) invoices shall be reviewed by the Grantee and their fiscal staff for appropriateness and thoroughness. If, after review of an invoice, an issue or concern with the sub-recipient is identified, the Grantee's staff will promptly working with the Agency to resolve the issue or concern. As part of this attempt, the Grantee's staff may request clarification of any unusual, miscellaneous, excessive, or potentially unallowable charged invoice by the Agency. If the explanation is sufficient to render a reasonable judgment on whether the cost is allowable, the Grantee's office will contact the Agency who shall promptly provide detailed justification or clarification, the invoice amount shall be reduced and expenses disallowed.
- E. Invoices shall be submitted on the applicable Monthly Invoice Form specific for each Service Provider ("Invoice Form"). All Invoice Forms shall be signed by both the Service provider and their respective Supervisor confirming the Service billing information. Invoice Forms that have not been signed by both the Service Provider and their respective Supervisor will be rejected as being incomplete and returned to the Agency.
- F. All Invoice Forms shall be completed in their entirety prior to submittal to the Grantee for review and payment.

#### X. General Conditions of Award.

- A. Medical Records Release. All medical records created by or otherwise relating to the Services provided under this Contract shall belong to the Grantee. The Agency's records custodian shall not release any medical records, or other records retained by the Agency relating to this Contract. Any and all requests for copies of such records shall be forwarded to the County for processing and response, in accordance with the governing HIPAA requirements and this Contract.
- B. Supervising Different Agency Staff. The Agency acknowledges and agrees that there may be instances where Agency supervisors are required to supervise employees from a different agency. The Agency shall ensure such instances, the Agency supervisor shall treat those employees with the same professional and courteous manner as is to be provided to those employees from their own respective Agency.

#### ATTACHMENT B

#### **BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT**

#### **RECITALS**

- **WHEREAS**, Orange County meets the definitions of a Covered Entity 45 CFR § 164.103.
- **WHEREAS**, Orange County has been designated as a Hybrid Entity under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules 45 CFR § 164.105.
- **WHEREAS,** Orange County, as a Covered Entity, pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.105(a)(2)(iii)(D) has documented that Orange County's Health Services Department is a health care component of the County and as such will be treated as a "Covered Entity."
- **WHEREAS**, in connection with providing services to the Covered Entity ("Services") by the Business Associate, the Covered Entity discloses to the Business Associate certain Protected Health Information ("PHI") that is subject to protection under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules 45 CFR Parts 160,162, and 164.
- **WHEREAS**, the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules requires that Covered Entity receive adequate assurances that the Business Associate will comply with certain obligations with respect to the PHI received in the course of providing Services to or on behalf of Covered Entity; and
- **WHEREAS**, the purpose of this Agreement is to comply with the requirements of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164, and the Florida Information Protection Act, § 501.171, Florida Statutes.
- **NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, agreements and obligations herein stated, the Parties agree as follows:

#### **INCORPORATION OF RECITALS**

- **Recitals Incorporated.** The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated as a material part of this Agreement.
- HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164, and the Florida Information Protection Act, Section 501.171, Florida Statutes. Incorporated.
- The parties hereby incorporated into the Agreement, the requirements and obligations imposed upon them by the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules 45 CFR Parts 160,162, and 164, and the Florida Information Protection Act, § 501.171, Florida Statutes. To the extent that the Agreement imposed more stringent requirements than those contained in HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules 45 CFR Parts 160,162, and 164, and the

Florida Information Protection Act, § 501.171, Florida Statutes, those more stringent requirements of the Agreement will control.

#### **DEFINITIONS**

- **Terms.** Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those terms in 45 CFR §§ 160.103, 162,103, 164.103, 164.402, and 164.501, and § 501.171, Florida Statutes.
- **Breach.** Breach shall have the meaning given to such term as found in 45 CFR § 164.402, and the Florida Information Protection Act, § 501.171, Florida Statutes.
- **Designated Record Set.** A group of records maintained by or for a covered entity that is: A group of records maintained by or for a covered entity that is: (A) The medical records and billing records about individuals maintained by or for a covered health care provider; (B) The enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management record systems maintained by or for a health plan; or (C) Used, in whole or in part, by or for the covered entity to make decisions about individuals. For purposes of this paragraph, the term record means any item, collection, or grouping of information that includes PHI and is maintained, collected, used, or disseminated by or for a covered entity.
- **Disclosure.** The release, transfer, provision of access to, or divulging in any manner of information outside the entity holding the information.
- **Florida Information Protection Act**. Florida Information Protection Act ("FIPA") codified at Section 501.171, Florida Statutes.
- **HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules**. Standards for Privacy, Security, Breach, Notification, and Enforcement at 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.
- **Individual.** The person who is the subject of PHI, and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.502(g).
- Individually Identifiable Health Information. Information that is a subset of health information, including demographic information collected from an individual, and: (A) is created or received by a health care provider, health plan, employer, or health care clearinghouse; and (B) relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and (i) that identifies the individual; or (ii) with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual.
- **Party or Parties.** Are the terms the Covered Entity and Business Associate may be referred to in this Agreement, individually or collectively and the Business Associate may be referred to herein, individually or collectively.

**Privacy Officer.** The individual designated by the County or Covered Entity, pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.530, who is responsible for the development and implementation of the Covered Entity's policies and procedures as they related to the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules.

**Personal Information.** Personal Information ("PI") means either of the following:

An individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination with any one or more of the following data elements for that individual:

A social security number;

- A driver's license or identification card number, passport number, military identification number, or other similar number issued on a government document used to verify identity;
- A financial account number or credit or debit card number in combination with any required security code, access code, or password that is necessary to permit access to an individual's financial account;
- Any information regarding an individual's medical history, mental or physical condition, or medical treatment or diagnosis by a health care professional; or
- An individual's health insurance policy number or subscriber identification number and any unique identifier used by a health insurer to identify the individual.
- A user name or e-mail address in combination with a password or security question and answer that would permit access to an online account.
- The term does not include information about an individual that has been made publicly available by a federal, state, or local governmental entity. The term also does not include information that is encrypted, secured, or modified by any other method or technology that removes elements that personally identify an individual or that otherwise renders the information unusable.

- Protected Health Information. Protected Health Information ("PHI") is individual identifiable health information that is or has been created, received, transmitted or maintained in any form or medium, on or behalf of the Covered Entity, with the exception of education records covered by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, as amend, 20 U.S.C. 1232g, and the health care records of students at post-secondary educational institutions or of students eighteen (18) years of age or older, used exclusively for their health care treatment which have not been disclosed to anyone other than a health care provider at the student's request.
- **Required by law.** Required by law shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR § 164.103.
- **Secretary of HHS.** Secretary of Health and Human Services or any other officer or employee of Health and Human Services ("HHS") to whom the authority involved has been delegated.
- Security Incident or Incident. Security Incident or Incident means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of PHI or PI contained in any form or interference with system operations in an information system that contains PHI or PI.
- **Use**. Use shall mean the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or analysis of PI or PHI within an entity that maintains such information.

#### **SCOPE OF AGREEMENT**

- INDEPENDENT STATUS OF PARTIES. The Parties agree that they are and shall be independently responsible for complying, and shall independently comply, with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and FIPA as it may be amended from time to time. The Parties further agree that they are and shall be responsible for their own actions and conduct and shall not assume responsibility for the actions and conduct of one another. The Parties agree that they are and shall independently maintain all corporate formalities establishing separate and individual control by each organization's board of directors, as applicable.
- Business Associate acknowledges that the confidentiality requirements herein apply to all its employees, agents and representatives. Business Associate assumes responsibility and liability for any damages or claims, including state and federal administrative proceedings and sanctions, the County, including costs and attorneys' fees, resulting from the breach by Business Associate of the confidentiality requirements of this Agreement.

# PRIVACY OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION AND CONFIDENTIALITY OF PERSONAL INFORMATION.

#### Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI and PI by Business Associate.

Business Associate may use or disclosure PHI and PI received from Covered Entity to its officers and employees. Business Associate may disclose PHI and PI to a business associate that is a subcontractor and may allow the subcontractor to create, receive, maintain, or transmit PHI and PI on its behalf if the Business Associate obtains satisfactory assurances in accordance with 45 CFR §164.504(e)(1)(i) and § 501.171(2) that the subcontractor will appropriately safeguard the information. All other uses or disclosures not authorized by this Agreement or otherwise governed by law are prohibited.

- **Responsibilities of Business Associat**e. Regarding the use or disclosure of PHI and PI, Business Associate agrees to:
  - Only use or further disclose the PHI and PI as allowable under this Agreement or applicable law.
  - Only use or further disclosure PHI and PI in a manner that would not violate the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules or FIPA if done so by the Covered Entity.
  - Establish and implement appropriate procedures, physical, and technical safeguards to prevent improper access, uses, transmissions, or disclosures of PHI and PI for mitigating to the greatest extents possible under the circumstances any deleterious effects from any improper access, use, or disclosure of PHI and PI that Business Associate reports to Covered Entity. Safeguards shall include, but are not limited to, the implementation and use of electronic security measures to safeguard electronic data, requiring employees to agree to access, use, or disclose PHI and PI only as permitted or required by this Agreement and taking related disciplinary action for inappropriate access, use or disclosure as necessary.
  - Report to Covered Entity's Privacy Officer, in writing, any suspected or confirmed access, use or disclosure of PHI or PI, regardless of form, not permitted or required by this Agreement of which Business Associate becomes aware within two (2) days of Business Associate's discovery of such unauthorized use or disclosure.
  - Ensure that Business Associate's subcontractors or agents to whom Business Associate provides PHI or PI, received from, created, or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity, agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the Business Associate with respect to PHI and PI, and ensure that its subcontractors or agents agree to establish and

- implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of all PHI and PI that it creates receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity.
- In order to determine compliance with HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and FIPA, the Business Associate must make its records, books, accounts, agreements, policies, and procedures available to the Secretary of HHS for determining the Covered Entity's compliance with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, and also, with the State of Florida, Department of Legal Affairs to determine the Covered Entity's compliance with FIPA.
- Use or disclosure to its subcontractors, agents, other third parties, and Covered Entity, only the minimum PHI and PI necessary to perform or fulfill a specific function required or permitted hereunder.
- Provide information to Covered Entity to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures within five (5) days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, if Business Associate maintains a Designated Records Set on behalf of Covered Entity.
- At the request, of, and in the time and manner designated by Covered Entity, provide access to the PHI and PI maintained by Business Associate to Covered Entity or individual, if Business Associate maintains a Designated Records Set on behalf of Covered Entity.
- At the request, of and in the time and manner designated by Covered Entity, make any amendment(s) to the PHI and PI when directed by Covered Entity, if Business Associate maintains a Designated Record Set on behalf of Covered Entity.
- Establish and implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of any PHI and PI Business Associate creates, receives, maintains or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity.
- Report to Covered Entity any Security Incident involving PHI and PI that Business Associate discovers.
- Compliance with Covered Entity's Policies. Business Associate hereby agrees to abide by Covered Entity's policies and practices relating to the confidentiality, privacy, and security of PHI and PI.
- Use of PHI and PI for Management and Administration or Legal

  Responsibilities of Business Associate. The Business Associate may

use PHI and PI received by the Covered Entity pursuant to this Agreement for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate.

However, Business Associate will only be allowed to use PHI and PI for the aforementioned uses if (A) the disclosure is required by law; or (b) the Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the PHI and PI is disclosed that it will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purposes for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notified the Business Associate of any instances in which the person is aware of a confidentiality breach of PHI or PI.

Data Aggregation Services. With respect to PHI and PI created or received by the Business Associate in its capacity as the Business Associate of the Covered Entity, Business Associate may combine such PHI and PI it has received from the Covered Entity with the PHI and PI received by the Business Associate in its capacity as a Business Associate of another Covered Entity to permit data analysis that relate to the health care operation of the respective Covered Entity, if data analyses is part of the Services that Business Associate is to provide to Covered Entity.

**Compliance**. Business Associate agrees to keep all PHI and PI confidential and secure in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement and according to current state and federal laws.

#### CONFIDENTIALITY

In the course of performing under this Agreement, each Party may receive, be exposed to, or acquire the confidential information including, but not limited to, all information, data, reports, records, summaries, tables and studies, whether written or oral, fixed in hard copy or contained in any computer database or computer readable form, as well as any information identifiable as confidential ("Confidential Information") of the other Party.

For purposes of this Agreement, Confidential Information shall **not** include PHI, the security and privacy of which is the subject of this Agreement. The Parties including their employees, agents, or representatives shall (A) not disclose to any third party the Confidential Information of the other Party except as otherwise permitted by this Agreement, (B) only permit use of such Confidential Information by employees, agents, and representatives having a need to know in connection with performance under this Agreement, and (c) advise each of their employees, agents, and representatives of their obligations to keep such Confidential Information confidential.

This provision shall not apply to Confidential Information: (A) after it becomes publically available through **no fault** of either Party; (B) which is later publically released by either Party in writing; (C) which is lawfully obtained from third parties without restrictions; or (D) which can be shown to be previously known or developed by either Party independently of the other Party.

#### SECURITY

- **Security of Electronic Protected Health Information and Personal Information.** Business Associate will develop, implement, maintain, and use administrative, technical, and physical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic PHI (as defined in 45 C.F.R. §160.103) and PI (as defined by § 501.171, Florida Statutes) that Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity consistent with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and FIPA.
- Reporting Security Incidents. Business Associate will report to the Covered Entity and County's Privacy Officer any Incident of which Business Associate becomes aware that is (1) a successful unauthorized access, use or disclosure of Electronic PHI or PI; or (2) (a) modification or destruction of Electronic PHI or PI or (b) interference with system operations in an information system containing Electronic PHI or PI.

#### REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

- **Reporting.** The Business Associate shall make a good faith effort to identify any use or disclosure of protected information not provided for in this Agreement.
- To Covered Entity. The Business Associate will report to the Covered Entity and the County's Privacy Officer, within (2) business days of discovery, any use or disclosure of PHI or PI not provided for in this Agreement of which the Business Associate is aware. The Business Associate will report to the Covered Entity and the County's Privacy Officer within twenty-four (24) hours of discovery, any Security Incident of which the Business Associate is aware. A violation of this paragraph shall be a material violation of this Agreement. Such notice shall include the identification of each individual whose unsecured PHI and PI has been, or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate to have been, accessed, acquired, or disclosed during such breach.

Title: Orange County's Privacy Officer,

Health Services Department

Telephone: (407)836-9214 Fax: (407) 246-5342

Address: 2002 A. E. Michigan Street, Orlando, FL 32806

E-Mail: <a href="mailto:privacy.officer@ocfl.net">privacy.officer@ocfl.net</a>

Reports of Security Incidents shall include a detailed description of each Incident, at a minimum to include the date of the Incident, the nature of the Incident, the information involved, whether the information was accessed, disclosed, used, modified, destroyed, etc., and the identities of the individual(s) and their relationship to the Business Associate, a description of the Business's response to each Incident, and the name and title of the individual the Covered Entity should contact for additional information.

Business Associate will conduct such further investigation as is reasonably required by the Covered Entity and promptly advise the Covered Entity of additional information pertinent to the Incident.

Business Associate will cooperate with Covered Entity in conducting any required risk analysis related to such Security Incident(s).

Business Associate will cooperate with Covered Entity in complying with any applicable notification requirements pursuant to the Breach Notification Rule and/or pursuant to Florida law (including but not limited to §§ 501.171 and 817.5681, Florida Statutes), and in taking steps determined by Covered Entity to be necessary to mitigate any potential harm caused by a Security Incident. Business Associate will pay and/or reimburse Covered Entity for any reasonable expenses Covered Entity incurs in notifying individuals of, and /or mitigating potential harm caused by a Security Incident caused by Business Associate and/or its subcontractors or agents.

To Individuals. In the case of a breach of PHI or PI discovered by the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall first notify the Covered Entity and the County's Privacy Officer of the pertinent details of the breach and upon prior approval of the County's Privacy Officer shall notify each individual whose unsecured PHI or PI has been, or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate to have been, accessed, acquired or disclosed as a result of such breach. Such notification shall be in writing by first-class mail to the individual (or the next of kin if the individual is deceased) at the last known address of the individual or next of kin, respectively, or, if specified as a preference by the individual, by electronic mail. Where there is insufficient, or out-of-date contact information (including a phone number, email address, or any other form of appropriate communication) that precludes written (or, if specifically requested, electronic) notification

to the individual, a substitute form of notice shall be provided, including, in the case that there are ten (10) or more individuals for which there is insufficient or out-of-date contact information, a conspicuous posting on the web site of the Business Associate involved or notice in major print of broadcast media, including major media in the geographic areas where the individuals affected by the breach likely reside. In any case deemed by the Business Associate to require urgency because of possible imminent misuse of unsecured PHI or PI, the Business Associate may also provide information to individuals by telephone or other means, as appropriate.

- **To Media.** In the case of a breach of PHI discovered by the Business Associate where the unsecured PHI of more than five hundred (500) persons or unsecured PI or more than five thousand (5000) persons is reasonably believed to have been, accessed, acquired, or disclosed, after prior approval by the Covered Entity, the Business Associate shall provide notice to prominent media outlets serving the State or relevant portion of the State involved.
- To HHS and the State of Florida Department of Legal Affairs. The Business Associate shall cooperate with the Covered Entity to provide notice to the Secretary of HHS, of unsecured PHI and to the State of Florida, Department of Legal Affairs of unsecured PI, that has been acquired or disclosed in a breach. If the breach was with respect to five hundred (500) or more individuals, such notice must be provided immediately. If the breach was with respect to less than five hundred (500) individuals, the Business Associate may maintain a log of such breach occurring and annually submit such log to the Covered Entity so that it may satisfy its obligation to notify the Secretary of HHS documenting such breaches occurring in the year involved.
- **Content of Notices.** All notices required under this Attachment shall include the content set forth 45 C.F.R § 164.404 and FIPA. Notification to individuals except that references therein to a "covered entity" shall be read as references to the Business Associate.

Regardless of the method by which notice is provided to individuals under this section, notice of a breach shall include, to the extent possible, the following: (1) a brief description of what happened, including the date of the breach and the date of the discovery of the breach, if known; (2) a description of the types of unsecured PHI and PI that were involved in the breach (such as full name, social security number, date of birth, home address, account number, or disability code); (3) the steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential harm resulting from the breach; (4) a brief description of what the covered entity involved is doing to investigate the breach, to mitigate losses, and to protect against any further breaches; (5) contact procedures for individuals to ask questions or learn additional information, which shall include a toll free telephone number, an e-mail address, web site, or postal address.

- Notice to Credit Reporting Agencies. In the case of a breach of PI discovered by the Business Associate where the unsecured PI of more than one thousand (1000) individuals has reasonably believed to have been, accessed, acquired, or disclosed, after prior approval by the Covered Entity, the Business Associate shall notify all consumer reporting agencies nationwide, that complete and maintain files in accordance with the provisions of § 501.171(5).
- **Financial Responsibility.** The Business Associate shall be responsible for all costs related to the notice required by this Section.
- **Mitigation.** Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effects that is known to the Business Associate of use or disclosure of PHI or PI in violation of this Agreement, the HIPAA Privacy and Rules, and FIPA.

#### **TERMINATION**

- **Automatic Termination.** Covered Entity is authorized to automatically terminate this Agreement, if it determines that the Business Associate has violated a material term of the Agreement.
- Opportunity to Cure or Terminate. At the Covered Entity's sole discretion, Covered Entity may either (a) provide notice of breach and an opportunity for Business Associate to reasonably and promptly cure the breach or end the violation, and terminate this Agreement if Business Associate does not cure the breach, or end the violation within the reasonable time specified by Covered Entity, or (b) immediately terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has breached a material term of this Agreement and cure is not possible.
- **Effects of Termination.** Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any claim or rights that arise based on the acts or omissions of the parties prior to the effective date of termination.

#### **Duties of Business Associate Upon Termination.**

When this Agreement is terminated, the PHI and PI that Business Associate received from, created, or received on behalf of Covered Entity must be destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, at the Business Associate's expense, including all PHI and PI in the possession of Business Associate's subcontractors or agents. However, if Business Associate determines that returning or destroying PHI and PI is not feasible, Business Associate must maintain the privacy protections under this Agreement and according to applicable law for as long as Business Associate retains the PHI and PI, and Business Associate may only use or disclose the PHI and PI for specific uses or disclosures that make it necessary for Business Associate to retain the PHI and PI.

If Business Associate determines that it is not feasible for Business Associate to return PHI or PI in the subcontractor's or agent's possession, Business Associate must provide a written explanation to Covered Entity of such reasons and require the subcontractors and agents to agree to extend any and all protections, limitations, and restrictions contained in this Agreement to the subcontractor's or agent's use or disclosure of any PHI and PI retained after the termination of this Agreement, and to limit any further uses or disclosures for the purposes that make the return or destruction of the PHI or PI not feasible.

#### **MISCELLANEOUS**

- Agreement Subject to All Applicable Laws. The Parties recognize and agree that this Agreement and their activities are governed by federal, state, and local laws, including the regulations, rules, and policies of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services including, but not limited to, HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, FIPA, and their accompanying regulations. The parties further recognize and agree that this Agreement is subject to new legislation as well as amendments to government regulations, rules, and police, and agree to amend this Agreement accordingly.
- **No Third party Beneficiaries.** Nothing express or implied in this Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than the Parties and the respective successors or assigns of the Parties any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.
- **Survival.** The rights and obligations of the Parties in Articles IV, V, VI, VII, and Sections 8.4, 9.6, 9.8, 9.9 shall survive termination of this Agreement indefinitely.
- **Amendment.** This Agreement may be revoked, amended, changed, or modified only by a written amended executed by both Parties.
- **Assignment.** This Agreement, including each and every right and obligation referenced herein, shall not be assigned by the Business Associate without the express prior written consent of the County.
- **Enforcement Costs.** If any legal action or other proceedings, including arbitration, is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any provision of this Agreement, the successful or prevailing Party or Parties shall be entitled to recover reasonable court costs and all expenses, if not taxable as court costs, incurred in that action or proceeding, including all appeals, in addition to any other relief to which such Party or Parties may be entitled. Such enforcement costs shall not be dischargeable in bankruptcy.

- **Interpretation.** Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that permits Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy and Security Rules.
- Indemnification. Business Associate agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Covered Entity, its officials and employees from all claims, actions, losses, suits, judgments, fines, liabilities, costs and expenses (including attorney's fees) attributable to its negligent acts or omissions, or those of its officials and employees acting within the scope of their employment, or arising out of or resulting from the indemnifying party's negligent performance under this Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or the provisions of § 768.28, Florida Statutes. The foregoing shall not constitute an agreement by either party to assume any liability for the acts, omissions and/or negligence of the other party.
- **Execution/Authority.** Each signatory to this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she possesses all necessary capacity and authority to act for, sign, and bind the respective entity or person on whose behalf he or she is signing.
- **Governing Law.** This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Florida to the extent not preempted by the Privacy Rules or other applicable federal law.
- Notice. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed received when delivered personally or when deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, sent registered, or certified mail, return receipt requested, or sent via nationally recognized and receipted overnight courier service, to the Parties at their respective principal office or record as set forth below or as designed in writing from time-to-time. No notice of a change of address shall be effective until received by the other Party (ies)

#### **Health Services Department**

Director, Health Services/EMS 2002 A E Michigan St Orlando, FL 32806 (407) 836-7611

Copy to:
Orange County Administrator
Administration Building, 5th Floor
201 S Rosalind Avenue
Orlando, FL 32801

#### **Business Associate**

Name Address City, State, ZIP

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such affected provision to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each provision of this Agreement shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. It is further the intention of the Parties that if any provision of this Agreement were capable of two constructions, one that rendered the provision void and one that renders the provision valid, then the provision shall have the meaning that renders it valid.

Successors and Assigns. Business Associate shall not assign either its obligations or benefits under this Agreement without the expressed written consent of the Covered Entity, which shall be at the sole discretion of the Covered Entity. Given the nature of this Agreement, neither subcontracting nor assignment by the Business Associate is anticipated and the use of those terms herein does not indicate that permission to assign or subcontract has been granted.

**Venue.** Any action or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision, or based on any right arising out of this Agreement shall be brought against any of the Parties in the courts of the State of Florida, County of Orange and each of the Parties consents to the jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate appellate courts) in any such action or proceeding and waives any objection to venue therein. Process in any action or proceeding referred to in the proceeding sentence may be served on any Party anywhere.

Waiver and Breach. No failure by a Party to insist upon the strict performance of any covenant, agreement, term, or condition of this Agreement shall

constitute a waiver of any such breach or such covenant, agreement, term, or condition. Any party may waive compliance by the other Party with any of the provisions of this Agreement if done so in writing. No waiver of any provision shall be construed as a waiver of any other provision or any subsequent waiver of the same provision.

**Entire Agreement.** The original Contract executed by the Parties known as Contract YXX-XXX, this Agreement, and any addenda or attachments thereto shall construe the entire understanding between the Parties as to the rights, obligations, duties, and services to be performed hereunder.

<u>EM</u>	ERGENCY CONTACT
Emergency Contact Person:	
Telephone Number:	Cell Phone Number:
Residence Telephone Number:	
completing the blocks below or addendum and returning it not lat Failure to acknowledge an addend negatively impact the responsive	receipt of any addenda issued to this solicitation by by completion of the applicable information on the er than the date and time for receipt of the proposal dum that has a material impact on this solicitation may ness of your proposal. Material impacts include bu
•	specifications, scope of services, delivery time nds, letters of credit, insurance, or qualifications.
Addendum No, Date	, Addendum No, Date

Addendum No.\_\_\_\_\_, Date\_\_\_\_\_ Addendum No.\_\_\_\_\_, Date\_\_\_\_\_

# EMPLOYMENT DATA, SCHEDULE OF MINORITIES AND WOMEN (Rev. 1/99) RFP Number & Title: Y16-152-LC, WRAPAROUND ORANGE SERVICES

Please provide the following data pertaining to your workforce. If you have an Orange County workforce, it should be shown. If you do not have an Orange County workforce, total permanent workforce should be shown. If this is a Joint Venture, employment data shall be furnished for each firm composing the joint venture. It is mandatory that you provide workforce data. Failure to provide this form with your bid/proposals may be cause for rejection of your bid/proposal.

	MAJO	ORITY		MINORITY MALES		MINORITY FEMALES					
	White	White			America	Asian			America	Asian	
JOB	Male	Female	Black	Hispani	n Indian	America	Black	Hispanic	n Indian	America	TOTAL
CATEGORIES				C		n				n	
Officials, Mgrs.											
Supervisors											
Professionals											
Technicians											
Sales Workers											
Office and Clerical											
Craftsman (Skilled)											
Operatives (Semi-											
Skilled)											
Laborers											
(Unskilled)											
Service Workers											
Apprentices											
Interns/Co-Ops											
Wages to Work											
Employees											
TOTAL											
Changes Since											
Last Report	1. 0	0	0		T-4-1 D-		(Outside 1	]			
The above reflects (Chec For Construction Projects	к One): s Only: Do	Orange you intend to	County Wor hire new er	ктогсе nployees for	_ Total Permathermathe the project? _	anent Workfor Yes	ce (Outside ( No If yes, I	orange County now many app	/) roximately? _		
Name of Firm				Period of	Report		No. of Yea	rs in Business	in Orange Co	ounty	
Form Completed by											
		Name/Title	(Printed or	Typed)				Signature			
Form Approved by		Nieros a /Title	<b>/</b> D :					Ciamatura			

Signature

Name/Title (Printed or Typed)

#### SCHEDULE OF SUB-CONTRACTING - M/WBE PARTICIPATION FORM

#### RFP NO.Y16-152-LC

Proposers shall list <u>all</u> sub-contractors to be used regardless of racial or gender grouping. Include all names, addresses, telephone numbers, type of work subcontracted and percentage of participation and M/WBE designation or majority (non-M/WBE owned company.) Designations are: MBE-BM (Black Male); M/WBE-BF (Black Female); MBE-HM (Hispanic Male); M/WBE-HF (Hispanic Female); MBE-NAM (Native American Male); M/WBE-NAF (Native American Female); MBE-AM (Asian Male); M/WBE-AF (Asian Female); and WBE-WF (White Female). Provide <u>all</u> information requested. Use additional sheets if necessary.

Will your firm perform all the work with your own forces? Yes \_\_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ (If no complete the form below)

Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

Date:

3/17/05

will your firm perform <u>all</u> the work with your own forces? Yes No (If no complete the form below)				
Name of Oak Oanthooten	A dalara a a	Town a of Manda ( )	Percent of	M/WBE
Name of Sub-Contractor	Address	Type of Work to be	Contract	Designation
		Performed	Amount to be Sub-	Or Majority Owner
			contracted	Owner
			contracted	
NOTE: An authorized signature on this form consti	itutes a binding commitment of sub-contrac	t the percentage and to	ne of work listed	above.
	and a surviving community of cab confide	porocritago aria (	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Company Name:				

# SCHEDULE OF SUB-CONTRACTING - SDV PARTICIPATION FORM RFP NO.Y16-152-LC

Proposers shall list <u>all</u> sub-contractors to be used regardless of racial or gender grouping. Include all names, addresses, telephone numbers, type of work subcontracted and percentage of participation and M/WBE designation or majority (non-M/WBE owned company.) Designations are: MBE-BM (Black Male); M/WBE-BF (Black Female); MBE-HM (Hispanic Male); M/WBE-HF (Hispanic Female); MBE-NAM (Native American Male); M/WBE-NAF (Native American Female); MBE-AM (Asian Male); M/WBE-AF (Asian Female); and WBE-WF (White Female). Provide <u>all</u> information requested. Use additional sheets if necessary.

Will your firm perform all the work with your own forces? Yes \_\_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ (If no complete the form below)

Date:

Will your firm perform <u>all</u> the work with your own fo	orces? Yes No (If no complete	e the form below)		
Name of Sub-Contractor	Address	Type of Work to be Performed	Percent of Contract Amount to be Sub- contracted	M/WBE Designation Or Majority Owner
			Contractor	
NOTE: An authorized signature on this form const	itutes a binding commitment of sub-contrac	t the percentage and t	ype of work listed	above.
Company Name:				
Signature:				

3/17/05

#### **LOCATION**

Proposers shall complete and submit the information below to clearly identify the location and applicable percentage of the work to be performed at each location listed.

PERCENTAGE OF WORK

	TRACTOR			ASSIG	NED
. Name:	:				%
Address:	:	City:	County:	State/Zip:	
. Name:	:				%
Address	:	City:	County:	State/Zip:	<del> </del>
. Name:	:				%
Address:	ē	City:	County:	State/Zip:	
UB-CONTR	RACTOR/SUB-CONTRAC	TOR			
. Name:	:				%
Address:	:	City:	County:	State/Zip:	
. Name:	:				%
Address:	:	City:	County:	State/Zip:	
. Name:	:				%
Address:	:	City:	County:	State/Zip:	<del></del>
. Name:	:				%
		Citv:	County:	State/Zip:	

(Use

#### CONFLICT/NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT

## **CHECK ONE** To the best of our knowledge, the undersigned firm has no potential conflict of interest due to any other clients, contracts, or property interest for this project. OR The undersigned firm, by attachment to this form, submits information which may be a potential conflict of interest due to other clients, contracts, or property interest for this project. **LITIGATION STATEMENT CHECK ONE** The undersigned firm has had no litigation and/or judgments entered against [ ] it by any local, state or federal entity and has had no litigation and/or judgments entered against such entities during the past ten (10) years. The undersigned firm, **BY ATTACHMENT TO THIS FORM**, submits a summary and disposition of individual cases of litigation and/or judgments entered by or against any local, state or federal entity, by any state or federal court, during the past ten (10) years. **COMPANY NAME AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE**

Failure to check the appropriate blocks above may result in disqualification of your proposal. Likewise, failure to provide documentation of a possible conflict of interest, or a summary of past litigation and/or judgments, may result in disqualification of your proposal.

TITLE

NAME (PRINT OR TYPE)

#### **AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM**

hereby authorize (print agent's na act as my/our agent to execute the CONTRACT approval PROCI NUMBER AND TITLE) my/our behalf before any administ	me),
Signature of Bidder	Date
STATE OF COUNTY OF	: :
day of, 20_	instrument was acknowledged before me this by He/she is oduced as an oath.
Witness my hand and office the day of	ial seal in the county and state stated above on , in the year
(Notary Seal)	Signature of Notary Public  Notary Public for the State of  My Commission Expires:

# Sole Proprietorship Partnership Non-Profit Joint Venture Corporation State of Incorporation: Principal Place of Business (Florida Statute Chapter 607): City/County/State THE PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS SHALL BE THE ADDRESS OF THE PROPOSER'S PRINCIPAL OFFICE AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FLORIDA DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS.

Federal I.D. number is \_\_\_\_\_\_

The Proposer shall complete and submit the following information with the proposal:

#### **DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE FORM**

	undersigned Consultant, in accordance with Florida Statute 287.087 hereby es that does:
	Name of Business
1.	Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
2.	Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, employee assistance programs and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
3.	Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy of the statement specified in Paragraph 1.
4.	In the statement specified in Paragraph 1, notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of Florida Statute 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
5.	Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted.
6.	Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of Paragraphs 1 thru 5.
	As the person authorized to sign this statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with above requirements.
	Bidder's Signature
	Date

#### WELFARE TRANSITION AND/OR DISLOCATED WORKER

#### PROPOSED HIRING INFORMATION

Section I: To be Submitted with Propos	<u>al</u>
Firm:	
Address:	
Phone Number:	
Email Address:	
Number of Individuals to be Hired:	
Signature of Authorized Representative of	Above Firm:
Printed Name:	
Section II: For CareerSource Central Flo Contract Award)  Verification: I certify that the below individual	<del>-</del>
Individual Complete Name:  1.	2
1.       3.	<ol> <li>2</li> <li>4</li> </ol>
5	6
CareerSource Central Florida 609 North Powers Drive, Suite 340 Orlando, Florida 32818 (407) 531-1223 Signature:	
Printed Name:	

#### LETTER OF INTENT (VERIFICATION OF M/WBE UTILIZATION)

\*INSTRUCTIONS\* Proposers shall place the following on their letterhead, executed by their authorized agent. Signed Letters of Intent must be submitted with the Proposal for each M/WBE Sub-Contractor(s) listed by the Proposer on the schedule of Subcontracting-MWBE participation form. If percentages or dollar values listed on this agreement differ from percentages or dollar values listed on the schedule of Subcontracting-MWBE participation form of the proposal, the values listed on this Letter of Intent will supersede for RFP scoring/evaluation.

The subcontract will reflect a 72-hour prompt payment clause.

Failure to complete and submit these forms may result in finding	g of the submittals non-
responsive.	
M/WBE Sub-Contractor	
Specific Scope(s) of Work	
Subcontract Percentage/Amount	
I understand that I shall not be allowed to substitute or change prior written approval of Orange County's Project Manager and the Division. Such approval shall in no way relieve my obligation County's M/WBE requirements and goals contained in Minority/Women Business Enterprise Ordinance, No. 94-02, as No. 98-25 and any subsequent amendments.	Business Development ns pursuant to Orange the Orange County
Under penalty of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing are true. False statements may result in criminal prosecution f degree as provided for in Section 92.525(3), Florida Statutes.	
Authorized Agent of Prime Contractor	Date
Printed Name & Title	
Authorized Agent of M/WBE Sub-Contractor	Date
Printed Name & Title	
M/WBE Address	
Phone Number F	ax Number

#### **E VERIFICATION CERTIFICATION**

Contract No.Y16-152

I hereby certify that I will utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system in accordance with the terms governing the use of the system to confirm the employment eligibility of the individuals classified below. In accordance with s. 837.06, Florida Statutes, I understand and acknowledge that whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his or her official duties shall be guilty of a misdemeanor in the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, Florida statutes.

All persons, including subcontractors and their workforce, who will perform work under **Contract No.Y16-152-LC, WRAPAROUND ORANGE SERVICES**, within the state of Florida.

NAME OF CONTRACTOR:	
ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR:	
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:	
TITLE:	
DATE:	

FOR PROCUREMENT-RELATED ITEMS (November 5, 2010) Date Updated For use after March 1, 2011 Bid Number #Y12-169-LC

#### RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM FOR USE WITH PROCUREMENT ITEMS, EXCEPT THOSE WHERE THE COUNTY IS THE PRINCIPAL OR PRIMARY APPLICANT

For procurement items that will come before the Board of County Commissioners for final approval, this form shall be completed by the bidder, offerer, quoter or respondent and shall be submitted to the Purchasing and Contracts Division by the bidder, offerer, quoter or respondent.

In the event any information provided on this form should change, the applicant must file an amended form on or before the date the item is considered by the appropriate board or body.

#### Part I

INFORMATION ON APPLICANT (BIDDER, OFFEROR, QUOTER, OR RESPONDENT):				
Legal Name of Applicant:				
Business Address (Street/P.O. Box, City and Zip Code):				
Business Phone ( )				
Facsimile ( )				
INFORMATION ON APPLICANT'S AUTHORIZED AGENT, IF APPLICABLE: (Agent Authorization Form also required to be attached)				
Name of Applicant's Authorized Agent:				
Business Address (Street/P.O. Box, City and Zip Code):				
Business Phone ( )				
Facsimile ( )				

For Staff Use Only:
Date Submitted

ELATED ITEMS (November 5, 2010)Date Updated

FOR PROCUREMENT-RELATED ITEMS (No	ovember 5, 2010)Date Updated
For use after March 1, 2011	Bid Number #Y12-169-LC
Part II	
IS THE APPLICANT A RELATIVE OF THE	E MAYOR OR ANY MEMBER OF THE BCC?
YES NO	
IS THE MAYOR OR ANY MEMBER OF TH	HE BCC THE APPLICANT'S EMPLOYEE?
YESNO	
	WITH A DIRECT BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN BUSINESS ASSOCIATE OF THE MAYOR OR
YESNO	
If you responded "YES" to any of the above relationship.	questions, please state with whom and explain the
(Use additional sheets of paper if necessary)	

OC CE FORM 2P

For Staff Use Only:
Date Submitted

OC C	E FC	RM	2P
------	------	----	----

FOR PROCUREMENT-RELATED ITEMS (November 5, 2010)Date Updated

For use after March 1, 2011

Bid Number #Y12-169-LC

# Part III ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND NOTARIZATION REQUIRED

I hereby certify that information provided in this relationship disclosure form is true and correct based on my knowledge and belief. If any of this information changes, I further acknowledge and agree to amend this relationship disclosure form prior to any meeting at which the above-referenced project is scheduled to be heard. In accordance with s. 837.06, Florida Statutes, I understand and acknowledge that whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his or her official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor in the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, Florida Statutes.

	Date:
Signature of Applicant	
Print Name and Title of Person completing thi	s form:
STATE OF FLORIDA : COUNTY OF :	
I certify that the foregoing instrument, 20 by as id	was acknowledged before me this day of He/she is personally known to me or has lentification and did/did not take an oath.
Witness my hand and official seal in, in the year	the county and state stated above on the day of
(Notary Seal)	Signature of Notary Public Notary Public for the State of Florida My Commission Expires:
Staff signature and date of receipt of form Staff reviews as to form and does not attes herein.	st to the accuracy or veracity of the information provide

 $form\ oc\ ce\ 2p\ (relationship\ disclosure\ form\ -\ procurement)\ (3\text{-}1\text{-}11)$ 

# FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQ) ABOUT THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM

#### CELATIONSHIP DISCLOSUR

*Updated* 6-28-11

#### WHAT IS THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM?

The Relationship Disclosure Form (form OC CE 2D and form OC CE 2P) is a form created pursuant to the County's Local Code of Ethics, codified at Article XIII of Chapter 2 of the Orange County Code, to ensure that all development-related items and procurement items presented to or filed with the County include information as to the relationship, if any, between the applicant and the County Mayor or any member of the Board of County Commissioners (BCC). The form will be a part of the backup information for the applicant's item.

#### WHY ARE THERE TWO RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORMS?

Form OC CE 2D is used only for development-related items, and form OC CE 2P is used only for procurement-related items. The applicant needs to complete and file the form that is applicable to his/her case.

#### WHO NEEDS TO FILE THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM?

Form OC CE 2D should be completed and filed by the owner of record, contract purchaser, or authorized agent. Form OC CE 2P should be completed and filed by the bidder, offeror, quoter, or respondent, and, if applicable, their authorized agent. In all cases, the person completing the form must sign the form and warrant that the information provided on the form is true and correct.

# WHAT INFORMATION NEEDS TO BE DISCLOSED ON THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM?

The relationship disclosure form needs to disclose pertinent background information about the applicant and the relationship, if any, between, on the one hand, the applicant and, if applicable, any person involved with the item, and on the other hand, the Mayor or any member of the BCC.

In particular, the applicant needs to disclose whether any of the following relationships exist: (1) the applicant is a business associate of the Mayor or any member of the BCC; (2) any person involved with the approval of the item has a beneficial interest in the outcome of the matter *and* is a business associate of the Mayor or any member of the BCC; (3) the applicant is a relative of the Mayor or any member of the BCC; or (4) the Mayor or any member of the BCC is an employee of the applicant. (See Section 2-454, Orange County Code.)

#### HOW ARE THE KEY RELEVANT TERMS DEFINED?

Applicant means, for purposes of a development-related project, the owner, and, if applicable, the contract purchaser or owner's authorized agent. Applicant means, for purposes of a procurement item, the bidder, offeror, quoter, respondent, and, if applicable, the authorized agent of the bidder, offeror, quoter, or respondent.

Business associate means any person or entity engaged in or carrying on a business enterprise with a public officer, public employee, or candidate as a partner, joint venture, corporate shareholder where the shares of such corporation are not listed on any national or regional stock exchange, or co-owner of property. In addition, the term includes any person or entity engaged in or carrying on a business enterprise, or otherwise engaging in common investment, with a public officer, public employee, or candidate as a partner, member, shareholder, owner, co-owner, joint venture partner, or other investor, whether directly or indirectly, whether through a Business Entity or through interlocking Parent Entities, Subsidiary Entities, or other business or investment scheme, structure, or venture of any nature. (See Section 112.312(4), Florida Statutes, and Section 2-452(b), Orange County Code.)

Employee means any person who receives remuneration from an employer for the performance of any work or service while engaged in any employment under any appointment or contract for hire or

apprenticeship, express or implied, oral or written, whether lawfully or unlawfully employed, and includes, but is not limited to, aliens and minors. (See Section 440.02(15), Florida Statutes.)

Relative means an individual who is related to a public officer or employee as father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half brother, half sister, grandparent, great grandparent, grandchild, great grandchild, step grandparent, step great grandparent, step grandchild, step grandchild, person who is engaged to be married to the public officer or employee or who otherwise holds himself or herself out as or is generally known as the person whom the public officer or employee intends to marry or with whom the public officer or employee intends to form a household, or any other natural person having the same legal residence as the public officer or employee. (See Section 112.312(21), Florida Statutes.)

## DOES THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM NEED TO BE UPDATED IF INFORMATION CHANGES?

Yes. It remains a continuing obligation of the applicant to update this form whenever any of the information provided on the initial form changes.

# WHERE DO THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM AND ANY SUBSEQUENT UPDATES NEED TO BE FILED?

For a development-related item, the Relationship Disclosure Form and any update need to be filed with the County Department or County Division where the applicant filed the application. For a procurement item, the Relationship Disclosure Form and any update need to be filed with the Purchasing and Contracts Division.

## WHEN DO THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM AND ANY UPDATES NEED TO BE FILED?

In most cases, the initial form needs to be filed when the applicant files the initial development-related project application or initial procurement-related forms. However, with respect to a procurement item, a response to a bid will not be deemed unresponsive if this form is not included in the initial packet submitted to the Purchasing and Contracts Division.

If changes are made after the initial filing, the final, cumulative Relationship Disclosure Form needs to be filed with the appropriate County Department or County Division processing the application not less than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled BCC agenda date so that it may be incorporated into the BCC agenda packet. When the matter is a discussion agenda item or is the subject of a public hearing, and an update has not been made at least 7 days prior to BCC meeting date or is not included in the BCC agenda packet, the applicant is obligated to verbally present such update to the BCC when the agenda item is heard or the public hearing is held. When the matter is a consent agenda item and an update has not been made at least 7 days prior to the BCC meeting or the update is not included in the BCC agenda packet, the item will be pulled from the consent agenda to be considered at a future meeting.

# WHO WILL REVIEW THE INFORMATION DISCLOSED ON THE RELATIONSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM AND ANY UPDATES?

The information disclosed on this form and any updates will be a public record as defined by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and may therefore be inspected by any interested person. Also, the information will be made available to the Mayor and the BCC members. This form and any updates will accompany the information for the applicant's project or item.

However, for development-related items, if an applicant discloses the existence of one or more of the relationships described above and the matter would normally receive final consideration by the Concurrency Review Committee or the Development Review Committee, the matter will be directed to the BCC for final consideration and action following committee review.

#### **CONCLUSION:**

We hope you find this FAQ useful to your understanding of the Relationship Disclosure Form. Please be informed that if the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this FAQ and the requirements of the applicable ordinance or law governing relationship disclosures, the ordinance or law controls.

Also, please be informed that the County Attorney's Office is not permitted to render legal advice to an applicant or any other outside party. Accordingly, if the applicant or an outside party has any questions after reading this FAQ, he/she is encouraged to contact his/her own legal counsel.

faq form oc ce 2 d and p (relationship disclosure form) (6-28-11)

Specific Project Expenditure Report (Revised November 5, 2010) For use as of March 1, 2011

For Staff Use Only:	
Initially submitted on	
Updated On	
Project Name (as filed)	
Case or Bid No.Y12-169-LC	

#### ORANGE COUNTY SPECIFIC PROJECT EXPENDITURE REPORT

This lobbying expenditure form shall be completed in full and filed with all application submittals. This form shall remain cumulative and shall be filed with the department processing your application. Forms signed by a principal's authorized agent shall include an executed Agent Authorization Form.

	This is the initial Form: This is a Subsequent Form:
	complete all of the following: and Address of Principal (legal name of entity or owner per Orange County tax rolls):
Name a	and Address of Principal's Authorized Agent, if applicable:
	e name and address of all lobbyists, Contractors, contractors, subcontractors, individuals or business s who will assist with obtaining approval for this project. (Additional forms may be used as ary.)
1.	Name and address of individual or business entity:
2.	Name and address of individual or business entity:
3.	Name and address of individual or business entity:
4.	Name and address of individual or business entity:
5.	Name and address of individual or business entity:
6.	Name and address of individual or business entity:
7.	Name and address of individual or business entity:
8.	Name and address of individual or business entity:Are they registered Lobbyist? Yes or No

Specific Project Expenditure Report (Revised November 5, 2010)

For use as of March 1, 2011

Updated

Updated

For Staff Use Only:
Initially submitted on
Updated On
Project Name (as filed)
Case or Bid No.Y12-169-LC

#### Part II Expenditures:

For this report, an "expenditure" means money or anything of value given by the principal and/or his/her lobbyist for the purpose of lobbying, as defined in section 2-351, Orange County Code. This may include public relations expenditures including, but not limited to, petitions, fliers, purchase of media time, cost of print and distribution of publications. However, the term "expenditure" **does not** include:

- Contributions or expenditures reported pursuant to chapter 106, Florida Statutes;
- Federal election law, campaign-related personal services provided without compensation by individuals volunteering their time;
- Any other contribution or expenditure made by or to a political party;
- Any other contribution or expenditure made by an organization that is exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C. s. 527 or s. 501(c)(4), in accordance with s.112.3215, Florida Statutes; and/or
- Professional fees paid to registered lobbyists associated with the project or item.

The following is a complete list of all lobbying expenditures and activities (including those of lobbyists, contractors, Contractors, etc.) incurred by the principal or his/her authorized agent and expended in connection with the above-referenced project or issue. You need not include de minimus costs (under \$50) for producing or reproducing graphics, aerial photographs, photocopies, surveys, studies or other documents related to this project.

Date of Expenditure	Name of Party Incurring Expenditure	Description of Activity	Amount Paid
		TOTAL EXPENDED THIS REPORT	\$

	1 or stagg ese only.
Specific Project Expenditure Report (Revised November 5, 2010)	Initially submitted on
For use as of March 1, 2011	Updated On
	Project Name (as filed)
	Case or Bid No.Y12-169-LC

For Staff Use Only:

#### Part III ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND NOTARIZATION REQUIRED

I hereby certify that information provided in this specific project expenditure report is true and correct based on my knowledge and belief. I acknowledge and agree to comply with the requirement of section 2-354, of the range County code, to amend this specific project expenditure report for any additional expenditure(s) incurred relating to this project prior to the scheduled Board of County Commissioner meeting. I further acknowledge and agree that failure to comply with these requirements to file the specific expenditure report and all associated amendments may result in the delay of approval by the Board of County Commissioners for my project or item, any associated costs for which I shall be held responsible. In accordance with s. 837.06, Florida Statutes, I understand and acknowledge that whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his or her official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor in the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, Florida Statutes.

Date: Signature of \( \triangle \)	Principal or △ Principal's Authorized Agent (check appropriate box)
PRINT NAME AI	ND TITLE:
STATE OF FLORIDA : COUNTY OF:	
I certify that the foregoing instrument was acknown 20 by He/she is personal as identification and did.	
Witness my hand and official seal in the, in the year	county and state stated above on the day or
(Notary Seal)	Signature of Notary Public Notary Public for the State of Florida My Commission Expires:
Staff signature and date of receipt of formStaff reviews as to form and does not attest to the accuracy or veracity of	of the information provided herein.

 $S:dcrosby \setminus ethics\ pkg-final\ forms\ and\ ords \setminus 2010\ workgroup \setminus specific\ project\ expenditure\ form\ 3-1-11$ 

# FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQ) ABOUT THE SPECIFIC PROJECT EXPENDITURE REPORT

*Updated 3-1-11* 

## WHAT IS A SPECIFIC PROJECT EXPENDITURE REPORT (SPR)?

A Specific Project Expenditure Report (SPR) is a report required under Section 2-354(b) of the Orange County Lobbying Ordinance, codified at Article X of Chapter 2 of the Orange County Code, reflecting all lobbying expenditures incurred by a principal and his/her authorized agent(s) and the principal's lobbyist(s), contractor(s), subcontractor(s), and Contractor(s), if applicable, for certain projects or issues that will ultimately be decided by the Board of County Commissioners (BCC).

Matters specifically exempt from the SPR requirement are ministerial items, resolutions, agreements in settlement of litigation matters in which the County is a party, ordinances initiated by County staff, and some procurement items, as more fully described in 2.20 of the Administrative Regulations.

Professional fees paid by the principal to his/her lobbyist for the purpose of lobbying need not be disclosed on this form. (See Section 2-354(b), Orange County Code.)

#### WHO NEEDS TO FILE THE SPR?

The principal or his/her authorized agent needs to complete and sign the SPR and warrant that the information provided on the SPR is true and correct.

A principal that is a governmental entity does not need to file an SPR.

#### **HOW ARE THE KEY RELEVANT TERMS DEFINED?**

Expenditure means "a payment, distribution, loan, advance, reimbursement, deposit, or anything of value made by a lobbyist or principal for the purpose of lobbying. This may include public relations expenditures (including but not limited to petitions, flyers, purchase of media time, cost of print and distribution of publications) but does not include contributions or expenditures reported pursuant to Chapter 106, Florida Statutes, or federal election law, campaign-related personal services provided without compensation by individuals volunteering their time, any other contribution or expenditure made by or to a political party, or any other contribution or expenditure made by an organization that is exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C. s. 527 or s. 501(c)(4)." (See Section 112.3215, Florida Statutes.) Professional fees paid by the principal to his/her lobbyist for the purpose of lobbying are not deemed to be "expenditures." (See Section 2-354, Orange County Code.)

Lobbying means seeking "to encourage the approval, disapproval, adoption, repeal, rescission, passage, defeat or modification of any ordinance, resolution, agreement, development permit, other type of permit, franchise, vendor, Contractor, contractor, recommendation, decision or other foreseeable action of the [BCC]," and "include[s] all communications, regardless of whether initiated by the lobbyist or by the person being lobbied, and regardless of whether oral, written or electronic." (See Section 2-351, Orange County Code.) Furthermore, lobbying means communicating "directly with the County Mayor, with any other member of the [BCC], with

any member of a procurement committee." (See Section 2-351, Orange County Code.) Lobbying also means communicating "indirectly with the County Mayor or any other member of the [BCC]" by communicating with any staff member of the Mayor or any member of the BCC, the county administrator, any deputy or assistant county administrator, the county attorney, any county department director, or any county division manager. (See Section 2-351, Orange County Code.) Lobbying does not include the act of appearing before a Sunshine Committee, such as the Development Review Committee or the Roadway Agreement Committee other than the BCC.

*Principal* means "the person, partnership, joint venture, trust, association, corporation, governmental entity or other entity which has contracted for, employed, retained, or otherwise engaged the services of a lobbyist." *Principal* may also include a person, partnership, joint venture, trust, association, corporation, limited liability corporation, or other entity where it or its employees do not qualify as a lobbyist under the definition set forth in Section 2-351 of the Orange County Code but do perform lobbying activities on behalf of a business in which it has a personal interest.

#### DOES THE SPR NEED TO BE UPDATED IF INFORMATION CHANGES?

Yes. It remains a continuing obligation of the principal or his/her authorized agent to update the SPR whenever any of the information provided on the initial form changes.

#### WHERE DO THE SPR AND ANY UPDATES NEED TO BE FILED?

The SPR needs to be filed with the County Department or County Division processing the application or matter. If and when an additional expenditure is incurred subsequent to the initial filing of the SPR, an amended SPR needs to be filed with the County Department or County Division where the original application, including the initial SPR, was filed.

#### WHEN DO THE SPR AND ANY UPDATES NEED TO BE FILED?

In most cases, the initial SPR needs to be filed with the other application forms. The SPR and any update must be filed with the appropriate County Department or County Division not less than seven (7) days prior to the BCC hearing date so that they may be incorporated into the BCC agenda packet. (See Section 2-354(b), Orange County Code.) When the matter is a discussion agenda item or is the subject of a public hearing, and any additional expenditure occurs less than 7 days prior to BCC meeting date or updated information is not included in the BCC agenda packet, the principal or his/her authorized agent is obligated to verbally present the updated information to the BCC when the agenda item is heard or the public hearing is held. When the matter is a consent agenda item and an update has not been made at least 7 days prior to the BCC meeting or the update is not included in the BCC agenda packet, the item will be pulled from the consent agenda to be considered at a future meeting.

## WHO WILL BE MADE AWARE OF THE INFORMATION DISCLOSED ON THE SPR AND ANY UPDATES?

The information disclosed on the SPR and any updates will be a public record as defined by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and therefore may be inspected by any interested person. Also, the information will be made available to the Mayor and the BCC members. This information will accompany the other information for the principal's project or item.

#### **CONCLUSION:**

We hope you find this FAQ useful to your understanding of the SPR. Please be informed that in the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this FAQ and the requirements of the applicable ordinance governing specific project expenditure reports, the ordinance controls.

Also, please be informed that the County Attorney's Office is not permitted to render legal advice to a principal, his/her authorized agent, or any other outside party. Accordingly, if after reading this FAQ the principal, his/her authorized agent or an outside party has any questions, he/she is encouraged to contact his/her own legal counsel.

s:\dcrosby\ethics pkg -- final forms and ords\2010 workgroup\faq spr (3-1-11).docx

## **AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM**

hereby authorize (print agent's name), act as my/our agent to execute any petit the CONTRACT approval PROCESS mor NUMBER AND TITLE) my/our behalf before any administrative or	
Signature of Bidder	Date
STATE OF :: COUNTY OF ::	
I certify that the foregoing instrume	nt was acknowledged before me this
day of, 20 by personally known to me or has produced _ dentification and did/did not take an oath.	He/she is as
Witness my hand and official seal in the, in the y	n the county and state stated above on rear
(N. 4	Signature of Notary Public
(Notary Seal)	Notary Public for the State of

#### **EXHIBIT A**

#### LEASED EMPLOYEE AFFIDAVIT

I affirm that an employee leasing company provides my workers' compensation coverage. I further understand that my contract with the employee leasing company limits my workers' compensation coverage to enrolled worksite employees only. My leasing arrangement does not cover un-enrolled worksite employees, independent contractors, uninsured sub-contractors or casual labor exposure.

I hereby certify that 100% of my workers are covered as worksite employees with the employee leasing company. I certify that I do not hire any casual or uninsured labor outside the employee leasing arrangement. I agree to notify the County in the event that I have any workers not covered by the employee leasing workers' compensation policy. In the event that I have any workers not subject to the employee leasing arrangement, I agree to obtain a separate workers' compensation policy to cover these workers. I further agree to provide the County with a certificate of insurance providing proof of workers' compensation coverage prior to these workers entering any County jobsite.

I further agree to notify the County if my employee leasing arrangement terminates with the employee leasing company and I understand that I am required to furnish proof of replacement workers' compensation coverage prior to the termination of the employee leasing arrangement.

I certify that I have workers' compensation coverage for all of my workers through the employee leasing arrangement specified below:

Name of Employee Leasing Company:
Workers' Compensation Carrier:
A.M. Best Rating of Carrier:
Inception Date of Leasing Arrangement:
I further agree to notify the County in the event that I switch employee-leasing companies. I recognize that I have an obligation to supply an updated workers' compensation certificate to the County that documents the change of carrier.
Name of Contractor:
Signature of Owner/Officer:
Title: Date:

#### **EXHIBIT B**

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CG 20 26 07 04

#### THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

## ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

#### **SCHEDULE**

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s)

The following are additional insureds under the Professional Liability section of this policy (already included under the GL by form #86571).

YOUR MEDICAL DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATORS, INCLUDING PROFESSIONAL PERSONS, BUT ONLY WHILE ACTING WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THEIR DUTIES FOR THE NAMED INSURED AS MEDICAL DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATORS;

AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR IS AN INSURED ONLY FOR THE CONDUCT OF YOUR BUSINESS AND SOLELY WHILE PERFORMING SERVICES FOR A CLIENT OF THE NAMED INSURED, BUT SOLELY WITHIN THE SCOPE OF SERVICES CONTEMPLATED BY THE NAMED INSURED;

STUDENTS IN TRAINING WHILE PREFORMING DUTIES AS INSTRUCTED BY THE NAMED INSURED;

ANY ENTITY YOU ARE REQUIRED IN A WRITTEN CONTRACT (HEREINAFTER CALLED ADDITIONAL INSURED) TO NAME AS AN INSURED IS AN INSURED BUT ONLY WITH RESPECT TO LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF YOUR PREMISES OR OPERATIONS:

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability for "bodily Injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:

- A. In the performance of you ongoing operations; or
- B. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

#### **EXHIBIT C**

POLICY NUMBER: **COMMERCIAL GENERAL** 

LIABILITY

## THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

### ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

#### **SCHEDULE**

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s)

ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS PURCHASING AND CONTRACTS DIVISION 400 E. SOUTH STREET ORLANDO, FL 32801

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability for "bodily Injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:

- In the performance of you ongoing operations; or Α.
- B. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

#### **EXHIBIT D**

## WORKERS COMPENSTION AND EMPLOYEES LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICYWC 00 03 13

2<sup>ND</sup> Reprint

Effective April 1, 1984

Advisory

#### WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agreement applies only to the extent that you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.)

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit anyone not named in the Schedule.

#### Schedule

## Name of Person or Organization:

ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS PURCHASING AND CONTRACTS DIVISION 400 E. SOUTH STREET ORLANDO, FL 32801

© 1983 National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc.

©NCCI Holdings, Inc.

#### **EXHIBIT E**

**POLICY NUMBER:** 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 24 04 10 93

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

#### WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

#### SCHEDULE

#### Name of Person or Organization:

ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS PURCHASING AND CONTRACTS DIVISION 400 E. SOUTH STREET ORLANDO. FL 32801

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.)

The TRANSER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US Condition (Section IV – COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS) is amended by the addition of the following:

We waive any right to recovery we may have against the person or organization shown in the Schedule above because of payments we make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing operations or "your work" done under a contract with that person or organization and included in the "Products-completed operations hazard". This waiver applies only to the person or organization shown in the Schedule above.



## CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYY

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

certificate floider in fied of such effdor	seille	iių sį.					
PRODUCER  1. Name of Agent or Broker			CONTACT   NAME:   FAX   (A/C, No : (A/C, No):				
Street Address				E-MAIL ADDRESS:			
City, State, Zip			IN	SURER(S) AFFOR	RDING COVERAGE	NAIC #	
				INSURER A:			
O Name of Incured				INSURER B:			
2. Name of Insured				INSURER C: 3.			
Street Address				INSURER D:			
City, State, Zip				INSURER E:			
21 1	TIEI	CATE	NUMBER:	INSURER F:  REVISION NUMBER:			
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES				VE BEEN ISSUED TO	THE INSURE		ICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RI CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	EQUIF PERT	REMEI	NT, TERM OR CONDITION THE INSURANCE AFFORD	OF ANY CONTRACT ED BY THE POLICIE	OR OTHER	DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO D HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL	WHICH THIS
INSR LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE	ADOL	SUBR	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF	(MM/DD/YYYY)	8. ципз	
GENERAL LIABILITY	III	****	-	,,,,,,		EACH OCCURRENCE \$	
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	4.	5.	6.	7.		DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) \$	
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR						MED EXP (Any one person) \$	
						PERSONAL & ADV INJURY \$	
						GENERAL AGGREGATE \$	
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:						PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$	
POLICY PRO- JECT LOC						COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT	
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 9.						(Ea accident) 5	
ANY AUTO SCHEDULED						BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$	
AUTOS AUTOS						PROPERTY DAMAGE 6	
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS						(Per accident)	
UMBRELLA LIAB COSUS	-	$\vdash$				\$	
OCCUR						EACH OCCURRENCE \$	
CDAMS*MADE	4					AGGREGATE \$	
DED RETENTIONS WORKERS COMPENSATION 4.0	$\vdash$	$\vdash$				WC STATU- OTH-	
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 10. VAN						EL. EACH ACCIDENT \$	
ANY PROPRIETOR PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory In NH)	N/A					E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$	
If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below						E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$	
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS BEIOW	+					EL DISEASE POLICY LIMIT   \$	
11							
[11]							
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC	LES (	Attach	ACORD 101, Additional Remarks	Schedule, if more space i	is required)		
Orange County Government	is a	addi	tionally insured or	n the General	Liability I	Policy. A waiver of su	brogation
applies in favor of Orange C	oun	tv G	Sovernment, it's ac	gents, employ	ees, and	officials on the Worke	er's
Compensation Policy.		,	,	, ,	,		
Compensation Folicy.							
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION							
13. Orange County Board of County Commissioners SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE							
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN							
Procurement Division Accordance with the policy provisions.							
400 E. South Street			AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE				
Orlando, Florida 32801			_				
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i				14.			
C 1999 0010 10000 000000 000000 000000							

#### ORANGE COUNTY CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE REVIEW GUIDE

- 1. PRODUCER: Agent's name and address must be shown along with contact name phone, fax, and email address.
- 2. INSURED: Legal name and address of the entity entering into the contract or agreement
- 3. INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE & NAIC #: Name of the insurance company that is insuring the line of coverage. The INSURER and applicable letter will be used throughout the certificate to indicate the lines of coverage placed with a particular insurance company. A letter must be shown in the INSUR LTR section for each coverage line listed on the certificate.
- 4. ADDL INSR: Signifies whether coverage includes additional insured status. Very few agents use this section. Additional insured status is usually discussed in the Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles section.
- 5. SUBR WVD: Signifies that a waiver of subrogation is in valid for each line of coverage as indicated.
- 6. POLICY NUMBER: A policy number should be listed for each line of coverage for which commercial insurance is being provided.
- 7. POLICY EFFECTIVE/EXPIRA TJON DATES: Effective and expiration dates should fall within the time frame of the inception of the contract or agreement.
- 8. LIMITS: As required in the written agreement. The general aggregate should be at least twice the per occurrence limit for all continuing service contracts. If the aggregate limit applies separately then the PROJECT box should be marked.
- AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: The ANY AUTO box is preferable however; some organizations do not own vehicles so the other boxes may be marked.
- 10. WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Look closely to see if any proprietor, partner, or executive officer is excluded. If so, please contact Risk Management for waiver approval. The WC STATUTORY LIMITS box must be selected.
- 11. OTHER: This section is used for other coverage such as professional liability and employee dishonesty. The same rules apply with regards to policy numbers, effective and expiration dates and limits.
- 12. DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES: This section typically contains any special or qualifying language such as additional insured status or waivers of subrogation. If additional space is needed an ACORD 101 should be attached. Please note that these certificates are for information only and do not confer any rights upon the certificate holder. This is why we also ask for the specific policy language or endorsement specifying that these provisions are in place.
- 13. CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Orange County Board of County Commissioners should be listed as the certificate holder. Individual departments and divisions should not be listed as the primary certificate holder.
- 14. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE: This section should contain the signature of the person authorized to issue the certificate on behalf of the insurance company.

COI Review Guide Revised 07/2014

#### Contract # Y16-152-LC

This Contract is made as of the day of Orange County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florid	
of County Commissioners, hereinafter referred to	as the COUNTY, and
partnership, [ ] a corporation authorized to do busine hereinafter referred to as the CONTRACTOR, whose Fernumber is	ess in the State of Florida,
In consideration of the mutual promises contained here CONTRACTOR agree as follows:	ein, the COUNTY and the

#### RECITALS

WHEREAS, the County was designated as a grantee for US Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) under the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration ("SAMHSA") CFDA no. (93.104)to receive grant funds for the development and ongoing implementation of a comprehensive delivery system of care based upon the federally recognized Child and Adolescent Service System Program ("System of Care"); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the System of Care, the County through its Mental Health and Homeless Division has completed a six-year federally funded project entitled "Wraparound Orange" (the "Project") which provides intensive, individualized care planning and management process aiming at achieving positive outcomes by providing a structured, creative and individualized team planning processing that results in plans that are effective and relevant to child/youth and family (collectively referred to as "Services"); and

WHEREAS, the Project which was originally implemented for children and youth up to the age of fourteen (14), who have been diagnosed with a "serious emotional disturbance", and their respective families; and

WHEREAS, the County has been granted additional funds under SAMHSA to expand the eligible age limit for Service recipients in the Project from fourteen (14) to twenty-one (21) years of age ("Grant"); and

WHEREAS, the County has designated the Orange County Mental Health and Homeless Division to serve as its authorized designee (hereinafter referred to as "Grantee") in overseeing and managing the procurement of the Services associated with the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has experience in the provision of the Services contemplated herein, and

WHEREAS, the Grantee has determined the Agency's proposed Services to be essential in fulfilling the County's Grant obligations and desires to enter into a contract with the Agency for such Services.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

**Recitals.** The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated as a material part of this Contract by reference.

as a r	naterial part of this Contract by reference.
The profes as mo	CLE I- SERVICES  CONTRACTOR'S responsibility under this Contract is to provide ssional/consultation services in the area of
The comp Repo sched This cumu conditamen Any conditation The conditation the conditation that the companion that the conditation tha	CONTRACTOR shall commence services on and lete all services by  rts and other items shall be delivered or completed in accordance with the detailed dule set forth in Exhibit "A".  contract may be renewed, by mutual agreement, for additional periods up to a lative total of () years at the same prices, terms and tions. Any change in price, terms or conditions shall be accomplished by written dment to this contract.  order issued during the effective date of this contract, but not completed within that d, shall be completed by the CONTRACTOR within the time specified in the order. Contract shall govern the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY'S rights and obligations respect to the extent as if the order were completed during the contract's rmance period.
<u>ARTI</u>	CLE 3 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR
Α.	The total amount to be paid by the COUNTY under this Contract for services, shall not exceed

date.

- B. Until otherwise provided with written notification from the Grantee, the Agency shall not be authorized to incur costs exceeding the amount issued by the Grantee on the Delivery Order ("DO"). The Grantee shall notify the Agency of any change to this dollar amount in writing in the form of a DO. In no event shall a DO authorize the reimbursement of costs exceeding the total Grant award identified in subsection A above.
- C. Any increase to the total Grant award for this Contract shall require an amendment to the Contract which shall be approved by the County in writing and executed by both parties.
- D. Requests for payment or reimbursement that exceeds the authorized award amount without an approved DO or executed amendment to this Contract may be denied at the sole discretion of the Grantee.
- E. The Grant Funds received under this Contract shall be used solely for the coordination of allowable Services as contemplated herein.
- F. Use of Grant Funds for any Services, other than those specifically described in this Scope of Service, may be deemed as a breach which may result in the termination of this Contract, at the sole discretion of the Grantee.
- G. The Agency agrees to return any Funds received under this Contract for Services provided to those Service Recipients or their families with incomplete eligibility documentation or for those deemed to be ineligible upon Grantee review.
- H. The Grantee reserves the right to deny payment for any requests for payment or reimbursement request from the Agency whereby the services rendered do not comply with this Contract.
- I. Funding is limited and shall be based on availability. Funding amount shall not be guaranteed and may be subject to change at the sole discretion of the Grantee.
- J. The Agency acknowledges that any remaining unspent Funds awarded for the Grant year shall not be carried over to the following Grant year.
- K. Invoices received from the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Contract will be reviewed and approved by the initiating County Department, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity with the Contract and then will be sent to the Finance Department for payment. Invoices must reference this contract number. Invoices will be paid in accordance with the State of Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act.
- L. <u>Final Invoice</u>: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the CONTRACTOR will clearly state <u>"final invoice"</u> on the CONTRACTOR'S

final/last billing to the COUNTY. This certifies that all services have been properly performed and all charges and costs have been invoiced to Orange County. Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not properly included on this final invoice are waived by the CONTRACTOR.

### Payments.

- a. This is a Fixed-Price (unit rate) contract. The Grantee shall pay the Agency for delivery of Service units provided in accordance with the terms of this Contract for a dollar amount not to exceed \$(insert dollar amount).
- b. The Agency shall provide monthly invoices with complete supporting documentation for all service units billed. Payment shall be provided for only Core Services with a yearly unit maximum for each Service Provider position.

#### Fixed-Price Unit Rate.

- A. Wraparound Specialists will be paid at a fixed-price unit rate of \$13.09 per unit, with a unit maximum of 4160 units per position per year.
  - a) A unit of service is a quarter-hour (15 minutes). (New employees shall be reimbursed at a rate of \$26.18 per hour for both Core and Operational Services for the first three (3) months of work (partial months will equal a month), after which time the designated unit rate for this position will apply.)
  - b) Core Services an average of 346 units (20 hours per week) per month is required for full compensation in activities that include: faceto-face contact or phone contact with family member, youth community personnel or natural supports (teachers, coaches, mentors, counselors, relatives, etc.) The total shall match the MISM Report from the IRIS system.
  - c) Operational Services the remaining workday hours not spent on core services shall be spent on the following activities: coaching; staff meeting/supervision meetings; training/conferences/webinars; vacation / sick time; administrative duties (filing, records upkeep, faxing, emails, etc.); and any other activities deemed necessary for the success of the Program.
- B. Lead Wraparound Specialists will be paid at a fixed-price unit rate of \$9.45 per unit with a unit maximum of 6240 units per position per year.
  - a) A unit of service is a quarter-hour (15 minutes).
  - b) Core Services an average of 520 units (30 hours per week) per month is required for full compensation in activities that include: face-

to-face contact with collateral contact with other treatment providers, community personnel, or natural supports (teachers, coaches, mentors, counselors, relatives, etc.); direct supervision of staff in core service activities; facilitation of staff meetings and/or coaching sessions with wraparound staff; facilitation of system of care and wraparound trainings including development of training materials; and review of staff documentation in the IRIS system.

- c) Operational Services the remaining workday hours not spent on core services shall be spent on the following activities: training/conferences/webinars; vacation / sick time; administrative duties (filing, records upkeep, faxing, e-mails, etc.); and any other activities deemed necessary for the success of the Program.
- C. Wraparound Supervisors will be paid at a fixed-price unit rate of \$9.92 per unit with a unit maximum of 6240 units per position per year.
  - a) A unit of service is a quarter-hour (15 minutes).
  - b) Core Services an average of 520 units (30 hours per week) per month is required for full compensation in activities that include: facilitation of staff meetings and/or coaching sessions with wraparound staff; facilitation of system of care and wraparound trainings including development of training materials; review of staff documentation in IRIS; face-to-face contact with collateral contact with other treatment providers, community personnel, or natural supports (teachers, coaches, mentors, counselors, relatives, etc.); attendance or presentation at community meetings on behalf of Wraparound Orange; and direct supervision of staff in core service activities.
  - c) Operational Services the remaining workday hours not spent on core services shall be spent on the following activities: training/conferences/webinars; vacation / sick time; administrative duties (filing, records upkeep, faxing, e-mails, etc.); and any other activities deemed necessary for the success of the Program.
- D. Wraparound Coaches will be paid at a fixed-price unit rate of \$11.21 per unit with a unit maximum of 6240 units per position per year.
  - a) A unit of service is a quarter-hour (15 minutes).
  - b) Core Services an average of 520 units (30 hours per week) per month is required for full compensation in activities that include: direct supervision of staff in Family Team meetings or preparation for Family Team meetings or face-to-face contact with family members, youth, community personnel, or natural supports (teachers, coaches, mentors, counselors, relatives, etc.); facilitation of staff meetings and/or coaching sessions with wraparound staff; review of staff documentation in the IRIS system, Wraparound and/or Wrap trainings

- including development training materials; attendance in required trainings; and phone contacts.
- c) Operational Services the remaining workday hours not spent on core services shall be spent on the following activities: training/conferences/webinars; vacation / sick time; administrative duties (filing, records upkeep, faxing, e-mails, etc.); and any other activities deemed necessary for the success of the Program.
- E. Family Partners will be paid at a fixed-price unit rate of \$10.22 per unit with a unit maximum of 4160 units per position per year.
  - a) A unit of service is a quarter-hour (15 minutes). (New employees shall be reimbursed at a rate of \$20.44 per hour for both Core and Operational Services for the first three (3) months of work (partial months will equal a month), after which time the designated unit rate for this position will apply.)
  - b) Core Services units of service must be documented and reported separately on a monthly report and submitted along with an invoice for wraparound services which will include the following: face-to-face contact or phone contact with family member, youth community personnel or natural supports (teachers, coaches, mentors, counselors, relatives, etc.) The total shall match the MISM Report from the IRIS system.
  - c) Operational Services the remaining workday hours not spent on core services shall be spent on the following activities: coaching; staff meeting/supervision meetings; training/conferences/webinars; vacation / sick time; administrative duties (filing, records upkeep, faxing, emails, etc.); and any other activities deemed necessary for the success of the Program.

### **ARTICLE 4 - TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE**

Signature of this Contract by the CONTRACTOR shall act as the execution of the truth-in-negotiation certificate certifying that the wage rates and costs used to determine the compensation provided for in this Contract are accurate, complete and current as of the date of the Contract and no higher than those charged the CONTRACTOR'S most favored customer for the same or substantially similar service.

The said rates and costs shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums should the COUNTY determine that the rates and costs were increased due to inaccurate, incomplete or non-current wage rates or due to inaccurate representations of fees paid to outside Contractors. The COUNTY shall exercise its right under this "Certificate" within one (1) year following final payment.

### **ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION**

### A. <u>Termination for Default:</u>

The COUNTY may, by written notice to the CONTRACTOR, terminate this contract for default in whole or in part (delivery orders, if applicable) if the CONTRACTOR fails to:

- 1. Provide products or services that comply with the specifications herein or fails to meet the COUNTY'S performance standards
- 2. Deliver the supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension.
- 3. Make progress so as to endanger performance of this contract
- 4. Perform any of the other provisions of this contract.

Prior to termination for default, the COUNTY will provide adequate written notice to the CONTRACTOR through the Manager, Procurement, affording them the opportunity to cure the deficiencies or to submit a specific plan to resolve the deficiencies within ten (10) days (or the period specified in the notice) after receipt of the notice. Failure to adequately cure the deficiency shall result in termination action. Such termination may also result in suspension or debarment of the CONTRACTOR in accordance with the County's Procurement Ordinance. The CONTRACTOR and its sureties (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the COUNTY resulting from the CONTRACTOR's default of the contract. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the COUNTY in completing contract performance.

In the event of termination by the COUNTY for any cause, the CONTRACTOR will have, in no event, any claim against the COUNTY for lost profits or compensation for lost opportunities. After a receipt of a Termination Notice and except as otherwise directed by the COUNTY the CONTRACTOR shall:

- 1. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.
- 2. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the terminated work.
- 3. Transfer all work in process, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated work as directed by the COUNTY.
- 4. Continue and complete all parts of that work that have not been terminated.

Neither CONTRACTOR nor COUNTY shall be liable, nor may cancel this contract for default, when delays arise out of causes beyond the control of CONTRACTOR or COUNTY. Such causes may include but are not restricted to acts of God, acts of COUNTY in sovereign capacity, fires, floods, lightning

strikes, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, civil disturbances, work stoppage, power failures, laws, regulations, ordinances, acts or orders of any governmental agency or official thereof, and unusually severe weather. In every case, the delay must be beyond the control of the claiming party. If CONTRACTOR is delayed in its performance as a result of the above causes, COUNTY, shall upon written request of CONTRACTOR, agree to equitably adjust the provisions of this contract, including price and delivery, as may be affected by such delay. However, this provision shall not be interpreted to limit COUNTY'S right to terminate for convenience.

#### **B.** Termination for Convenience

The COUNTY, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the County's interest. If this contract is terminated, the COUNTY shall be liable only for goods or services delivered and accepted. The COUNTY Notice of Termination shall provide the CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days prior notice before it becomes effective. A termination for convenience may apply to individual delivery orders, purchase orders or to the contract in its entirety.

## <u>ARTICLE 6 – PERSONNEL</u>

The CONTRACTOR represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the COUNTY.

All of the services required hereafter shall be performed by the CONTRACTOR or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the CONTRACTOR'S key personnel, as may be listed in Exhibit "A", must be made known to the COUNTY'S representative and written approval must be granted by the COUNTY before said change or substitution can become effective.

The CONTRACTOR warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel to the highest professional standards in the field. The COUNTY may require, in writing, that the CONTRACTOR remove from this contract any employee the COUNTY deems incompetent, careless, or otherwise objectionable.

## <u>ARTICLE 7 – SUBCONTRACTING AND MINORITY/WOMEN EMPLOYMENT PARTICIPATION</u>

A. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for reporting Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE) sub-CONTRACTOR contract dollar amount(s) for the

M/WBE sub-Contractor(s) listed in this document, by submitting the appropriate documents, which shall include but not limited to fully executed sub-contract agreements and/or purchase orders evidencing contract award of work, to the Business Development Division. Submittal of these sub-contract agreements/purchase orders is a condition precedent to execution of the prime contract with the COUNTY. Quarterly updated M/WBE utilization reports and Employment Data, Schedule of Minorities and Women reports are to be submitted every quarter during the term of the contract. Additionally, the CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the M/WBE participation percentage proposed in the Contractor's Proposal submitted for this Contract is accomplished.

- B. Subsequent amendments to this contract shall be submitted with the appropriate documentation evidencing contractual change or assignment of work to the Business Development Division, with a copy to the COUNTY'S designated representative, within ten (10) days after COUNTY'S execution.
- C. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for reporting local minority/women employment percentage levels within the firm and the minority/women employment percentage levels that the firm anticipates utilizing to fulfill the obligations of this Contract. The report(s) shall be submitted to the Business Development Division, on a quarterly basis during the life of the Contract.
- D. The awarded prime CONTRACTOR shall furnish written documentation evidencing actual dollars paid to **all sub-Contractors** utilized by the prime CONTRACTOR on the project. This will include, but not limited to: copies of cancelled checks, approved invoices, and signed affidavits certifying the accuracy of payments so that the COUNTY may determine actual MWBE participation achieved by the prime CONTRACTOR prior to the issuance of final payment.
- E. In the event a certified M/WBE sub-Contractor's subcontract is terminated for convenience, the CONTRACTOR shall submit a letter to the Business Development Division from the terminated sub-Contractor evidencing their concurrence with the termination. In the event a certified M/WBE sub-Contractor's subcontract is terminated for cause, the CONTRACTOR shall justify the replacement of that sub-Contractor, in writing to the Business Development Division, accompanied by the Project Manager's recommendation or consent to termination.
- F. It is the intent of the COUNTY to insure prompt payment of all sub-Contractors working on COUNTY projects. The CONTRACTOR shall:
  - 1. Submit copies of executed contracts between the CONTRACTOR and all of its M/WBE sub-Contractors to the Business Development Division.
  - The COUNTY may at its discretion require copies of subcontracts/purchase orders for the non-M/WBE's listed on SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTING -

**M/WBE PARTICIPATION FORM** and or utilized on the project. However, if this option is <u>not</u> exercised the awarded Proposer shall provide a list of all non-M/WBE sub-Contractors certifying that a prompt payment clause has been included in that contract or purchase order.

- Incorporate a prompt payment assurance provision and payment schedule in all contracts between the CONTRACTOR and sub-Contractors (including those with non-M/WBE's) stating that payment will be made to the sub-CONTRACTOR within 72 hours of receipt of payment from the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR shall pay each sub-CONTRACTOR for all work covered under an invoice within the 72 hour time frame.
- G. By entering into this contract, the CONTRACTOR affirmatively commits to comply with the M/WBE subcontracting requirements submitted with his/her Proposal. The failure of the CONTRACTOR/CONTRACROR to comply with this commitment during the Contract's performance period may be considered a breach of Contract.

The COUNTY may take action up to and including termination for default if this condition is not remedied within the time period specified by the Manager, Procurement.

## <u>ARTICLE 8 – SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN (SDV) REPORTING</u>

The prime CONTRACTOR/CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for reporting (SDV) sub-Contractor contract dollar amount(s) for the SDV firms(s) listed in the document by submitting appropriate documents evidencing contract award of work to the Business Development Division (BDD). The report(s) shall be submitted in the (BDD) with a copy to the representative within ten (10) days after issuance of individual assignments or task authorizations.

- A. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for reporting SDV sub-CONTRACTOR contract dollar amount(s) for the SDV sub-Contractor(s) listed in this document, by submitting the appropriate documents, which shall include but not limited to fully executed sub-contract agreements and/or purchase orders evidencing contract award of work, to the BDD. Submittal of these sub-contract agreements/purchase orders is a condition precedent to execution of the prime contract with the COUNTY. Quarterly updated utilization report shall be submitted every quarter during the term of the contract.
- B. Subsequent amendments to this contract shall be submitted with the appropriate documentation evidencing contractual change or assignment of work to the BDD, with a copy to the COUNTY'S designated representative, within ten (10) calendar days after COUNTY'S execution.
  - The awarded prime CONTRACTOR shall furnish written documentation evidencing actual dollars paid to **all sub-Contractors** utilized by the CONTRACTOR on the project. This will include, but not limited to: copies of cancelled checks, approved invoices, and signed affidavits certifying the

accuracy of payments so that the COUNTY may determine actual SDV participation achieved by the CONTRACTOR prior to the issuance of final payment.

- C. In the event a registered SDV sub-Contractor's subcontract is terminated for convenience, the CONTRACTOR shall call and submit a letter to the BDD from the terminated sub-Contractor evidencing their concurrence with the termination. In the event a registered SDV sub-Contractor's subcontract is terminated for cause, the CONTRACTOR shall justify the replacement of that sub-Contractor, in writing to the BDD, accompanied by the Project Manager's recommendation or consent to termination.
  - D. It is the intent of the COUNTY to insure prompt payment of all sub-Contractors working on COUNTY projects. The CONTRACTOR shall:
  - Submit copies of executed contracts between the CONTRACTOR and all of its SDV sub-Contractors to the BDD.
  - Incorporate a prompt payment assurance provision and payment schedule in all contracts between the CONTRACTOR and SDV sub-Contractors (stating that payment will be made to the sub-CONTRACTOR within 72 hours of receipt of payment from the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR shall pay each sub-CONTRACTOR for all work covered under an invoice within the 72 hour time frame.
- E. By entering into this contract, the CONTRACTOR affirmatively commits to comply with the SDV requirements submitted with his/her Proposal. The failure of the CONTRACTOR/CONTRACTOR to comply with this commitment during the Contract's performance period may be considered a breach of Contract.

## **ARTICLE 9 - FEDERAL AND STATE TAX**

The COUNTY is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The COUNTY will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall <u>not</u> be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials used to fulfill contractual obligations with the COUNTY, nor is the CONTRACTOR authorized to use the COUNTY'S Tax Exemption Number in securing such materials.

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employee FICA and Social Security benefits with respect to this Contract.

## **ARTICLE 10 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS**

The COUNTY'S performance and obligation to pay under this Contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation for its purpose by the Board of County Commissioners, or other specified funding source for this procurement.

## **ARTICLE 11 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:**

Vendor/Contractor agrees to maintain on a primary basis and at its sole expense, at all times throughout the duration of this contract the following types of insurance coverage with limits and on forms (including endorsements) as described herein. These requirements, as well as the County's review or acceptance of insurance maintained by Vendor/Contractor is not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities assumed by Vendor/Contractor under this contract. Vendor/Contractor is required to maintain any coverage required by federal and state workers' compensation or financial responsibility laws including but not limited to Chapter 324 and 440, Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time to time.

The Vendor/Contractor shall require and ensure that each of its sub-Vendors/sub-Contractors providing services hereunder (if any) procures and maintains until the completion of their respective services, insurance of the types and to the limits specified herein.

Insurance carriers providing coverage required herein must be licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida and must possess a current A.M. Best's Financial Strength Rating of A- Class VIII or better.

(Note: State licenses can be checked via <a href="www.floir.com/companysearch/">www.floir.com/companysearch/</a> and A.M. Best Ratings are available at <a href="www.ambest.com">www.ambest.com</a>)

#### Required Coverage:

**Commercial General Liability** - The Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage issued on the most recent version of the ISO form as filed for use in Florida or its equivalent, with a limit of liability of not less than \$500,000 per occurrence. Vendor/Contractor further agrees coverage shall not contain any endorsement(s) excluding or limiting Product/Completed Operations, Contractual Liability, or Separation of Insureds. The General Aggregate limit shall either apply separately to this contract or shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit.

#### Required Endorsements:

Additional Insured- CG 20 26 or CG 20 10/CG 20 37 or their equivalents.

Note: CG 20 10 must be accompanied by CG 20 37 to include products/completed operations

Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery- CG 24 04 or its equivalent. Note: If blanket endorsements are being submitted please include the entire endorsement and the applicable policy number.

**Business Automobile Liability** - The Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage for all owned; non-owned and hired vehicles issued on the most recent version of the ISO form as filed for use in Florida or its equivalent, with limits of not less than \$500,000 (five hundred thousand dollars) per accident. In the event the Vendor/Contractor does not own automobiles the Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage for hired and non-owned auto liability, which may be satisfied by way of endorsement to the Commercial General Liability policy or separate Business Auto Liability policy.

### Required Endorsements:

MCS-90- for operations governed by the Sections 29 & 30 of the Motor Carrier Act of 1980

Workers' Compensation - The Vendor/Contractor shall maintain coverage for its employees with statutory workers' compensation limits, and no less than \$100,000 each incident of bodily injury or disease for Employers' Liability. Elective exemptions as defined in Florida Statute 440 will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Any Vendor/Contractor using an employee leasing company shall complete the Leased Employee Affidavit.

## Required Endorsements:

Waiver of Subrogation- WC 00 03 13 or its equivalent

**Professional Liability-** with a limit of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence/claim

Fidelity/Employee Dishonesty- with a limit greater than or equal to the contract amount

**Sexual Abuse & Molestation**- with a limit of not less than \$100,000 per occurrence/claim

When a self-insured retention or deductible exceeds \$100,000 the COUNTY reserves the right to request a copy of Vendor/Contractor most recent annual report or audited financial statement. For policies written on a "Claims-Made" basis the Vendor/Contractor agrees to maintain a retroactive date prior to or equal to the effective date of this contract. In the event the policy is canceled, non-renewed, switched to occurrence form, or any other event which triggers the right to purchase a Supplemental Extended Reporting Period (SERP) during the

life of this contract the Vendor/Contractor agrees to purchase the SERP with a minimum reporting period of not less than two years. Purchase of the SERP shall not relieve the Vendor/Contractor of the obligation to provide replacement coverage.

By entering into this contract Vendor/Contractor agrees to provide a waiver of subrogation or a waiver of transfer of rights of recovery, in favor of the County for the workers' compensation and general liability policies as required herein. When required by the insurer or should a policy condition not permit the Vendor/Contractor to enter into a pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then Vendor/Contractor agrees to notify the insurer and request the policy be endorsed with a Waiver of Subrogation or a Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others endorsement.

Prior to execution and commencement of any operations/services provided under this contract the Vendor/Contractor shall provide the COUNTY with current certificates of insurance evidencing all required coverage. In addition to the certificate(s) of insurance the Vendor/Contractor shall also provide endorsements for each policy as specified above. All specific policy endorsements shall be in the name of the Orange County Board of County Commissioners.

For continuing service contracts renewal certificates shall be submitted immediately upon request by either the COUNTY or the COUNTY's contracted certificate compliance management firm. The certificates shall clearly indicate that the Vendor/Contractor has obtained insurance of the type, amount and classification as required for strict compliance with this insurance section. Vendor/Contractor shall notify the COUNTY not less than thirty (30) business days (ten business days for non-payment of premium) of any material change in or cancellation/non-renewal of insurance coverage. The Vendor/Contractor shall provide evidence of replacement coverage to maintain compliance with the aforementioned insurance requirements to the COUNTY or its certificate management representative five (5) business days prior to the effective date of the replacement policy (ies).

The certificate holder shall read:

Orange County Board of County Commissioners c/o Procurement Division 400 E. South Street, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor Orlando, Florida 32801

## **ARTICLE 12 - INDEMNIFICATION**

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the COUNTY, its officials, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, suits, judgments, demands, liabilities, damages, cost and expenses (including attorney's fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever arising directly or indirectly out of or caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the CONTRACTOR or its

subcontractors (if any), anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable; excepting those acts or omissions arising out of the sole negligence of the COUNTY.

## **ARTICLE 13 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS**

The COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract. Except as above, neither the COUNTY nor the CONTRACTOR shall assign, sublet, convey or transfer its interest in this Contract without the written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the COUNTY which may be a party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR.

## **ARTICLE 14 – REMEDIES**

This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any litigation involving this contract shall be the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or at equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

### **ARTICLE 15 - UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE**

The Uniform Commercial Code (Florida Statutes, Chapter 672) shall prevail as the basis for contractual obligations between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY for any terms and conditions not specifically stated in this Contract.

### **ARTICLE 16 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST**

The CONTRACTOR represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance or services required hereunder, as provided for in Florida Statutes 112.311. The CONTRACTOR further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed for said performance.

The CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the COUNTY in writing by certified mail of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the CONTRACTOR'S judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of

work that the CONTRACTOR may undertake and request an opinion of the COUNTY as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the COUNTY, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the CONTRACTOR. The COUNTY agrees to notify the CONTRACTOR of its opinion by certified mail within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notification by the CONTRACTOR. If, in the opinion of the COUNTY, the prospective business association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall so state in the notification and the CONTRACTOR shall, at its option, enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the COUNTY by the CONTRACTOR under the terms of this Contract.

### **ARTICLE 17 - EXCUSABLE DELAYS**

The CONTRACTOR shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the CONTRACTOR or its sub-Contractors and without their fault or negligence. Such causes include, but are not limited to: acts of God; natural or public health emergencies; labor disputes; freight embargoes; and abnormally severe and unusual weather conditions.

Upon the CONTRACTOR'S request, the COUNTY shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the work and, if the CONTRACTOR'S failure to perform was without it or its sub-Contractor's fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly; subject to the COUNTY'S right to change, terminate, or stop any or all work at any time.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – ARREARS**

The CONTRACTOR shall not pledge the COUNTY'S credit or make it a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien, or any form of indebtedness. The CONTRACTOR further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 19 - DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The CONTRACTOR shall deliver to the COUNTY for approval and acceptance, and before being eligible for final payment or any amounts due, all documents and materials prepared by and for the COUNTY under this Contract.

All oral and written information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all information and data obtained, developed or supplied by the COUNTY, or at its expense, will be kept confidential by the CONTRACTOR and will not be disclosed to any other party, directly or indirectly, without the COUNTY'S prior written consent unless required by a lawful order. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data base, reports and other data developed, or purchased, under this Contract for or at the

COUNTY'S expense shall be and remain the COUNTY'S property and may be reproduced at the discretion of the COUNTY.

The COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Records Law).

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to disclosure or ownership of documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

## **ARTICLE 20 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP**

The CONTRACTOR is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities under this Contract, an Independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent or servant of the COUNTY. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the CONTRACTOR'S sole direction, supervision, and control. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its employees perform the work, and in all respects the CONTRACTOR'S relationship and the relationship of its employees to the COUNTY shall be that of an Independent Contractor and not as employees or agents of the COUNTY.

The CONTRACTOR does not have the power or authority to bind the COUNTY in any promise, agreement or representation other than as specifically provided for in this Agreement.

## **ARTICLE 21 - CONTINGENT FEES**

The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not employed or retrained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CONTRACTOR to solicit or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract.

## **ARTICLE 22 - ACCESS AND AUDITS**

The CONTRACTOR shall establish and maintain a reasonable accounting system, which enables ready identification of CONTRACTOR'S cost of goods and use of funds. Such accounting system shall also include adequate records and documents to justify all prices for all items invoiced as well as all charges, expenses and costs incurred in providing the goods for at least five (5) years after completion of this contract. The COUNTY or its designee shall have access to such books, records, subcontract(s), financial operations, and documents of the CONTRACTOR or its sub-Contractors as

required to comply with this section for the purpose of inspection or audit anytime during normal business hours at the CONTRACTOR'S place of business. This right to audit shall include the CONTRACTOR'S sub-Contractors used to procure goods or services under the contract with the COUNTY. CONTRACTOR shall ensure the COUNTY has these same rights with sub-Contractor(s) and suppliers.

## **ARTICLE 23 – EQUAL OPPORTUNITY**

It is hereby declared that equal opportunity and nondiscrimination shall be the County's policy intended to assure equal opportunities to every person, regardless of race, religion, sex, sexual orientation and gender expression/identity, color, age, disability or national origin, in securing or holding employment in a field of work or labor for which the person is qualified, as provided by Section 17-314 of the Orange County Code and the County Administrative Regulations.

Further, the CONTRACTOR shall abide by the following provisions:

- A. The CONTRACTOR shall represent that the CONTRACTOR has adopted and maintains a policy of nondiscrimination as defined by applicable County ordinance throughout the term of this contract.
- B. The CONTRACTOR shall allow reasonable access to all business and employment records for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with the non-discrimination provision of the contract.
- C. The provisions of the prime contract shall be incorporate by the CONTRACTOR into the contracts of any applicable subcontractors.

## **ARTICLE 24 - ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT**

The COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR agree that this Contract sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, deleted, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto.

## **ARTICLE 25 - ENFORCEMENT COSTS**

If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Contract, the successful or prevailing party or parties shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and all expenses (including taxes) even if not taxable as court costs (including, without limitation, all such fees, costs and expenses incident to appeals), incurred in that action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which such party or parties may be entitled.

### **ARTICLE 26 - AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE**

The CONTRACTOR hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to, conduct its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the COUNTY upon request.

## **ARTICLE 27 – SEVERABILITY**

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

## **ARTICLE 28 - MODIFICATIONS OF WORK**

The COUNTY reserves the right to make changes in the work, including alterations, reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the CONTRACTOR of the COUNTY'S notification of a contemplated change, the CONTRACTOR shall (1) if requested by COUNTY, provide an estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change, (2) notify the COUNTY of any estimated change in the completion date, and (3) advise the COUNTY in writing if the contemplated change shall affect the CONTRACTOR'S ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the COUNTY so instructs in writing, the CONTRACTOR shall suspend work on that portion of the work affected by a contemplated change, pending the COUNTY'S decision to proceed with the change.

If the COUNTY elects to make the change, the COUNTY shall issue a Contract Amendment or Change Order and the CONTRACTOR shall not commence work on any such change until such written amendment or change order has been issued and signed by each of the parties.

#### ARTICLE 29 – WELFARE TRANSITION AND/OR DISLOCATED WORKERS

CONTRACTOR has committed to hire \_\_\_\_\_ ( ) CareerSource Central Florida participants residing in the Orlando MSA. Therefore, within five (5) days after contract award,

CONTRACTOR shall contact the Orange County Business Development Liaison (BDD) at (407) 836-7317 to assist with meeting this requirement. The BDD Liaison will work with the CareerSource Central Florida staff and the CONTRACTOR to ensure that the

process is properly adhered until all requirements have been met. CareerSource Central Florida participants may be employed in any position within the firm but must be hired on a fulltime basis.

The failure of the CONTRACTOR to comply with these hiring commitments after contract award shall be grounds for termination of the contract for default.

During performance of the contract, the CONTRACTOR will take appropriate steps to ensure that individuals hired under this program are retained. However, if it becomes necessary to replace an employee, the CONTRACTOR shall contact the BDD Liaison. At its discretion, COUNTY may periodically request submission of certified payrolls to confirm the employment status of program participants.

#### <u>ARTICLE 30 - REQUIREMENTS CONTRACT</u>

This is a Requirements Contract and the COUNTY shall order from the CONTRACTOR all of the supplies and/or services specified in the contract's price schedule that are required to be purchased by the COUNTY. If the COUNTY urgently requires delivery of goods or services before the earliest date that delivery may be required under this contract, and if the CONTRACTOR will not accept an order providing for accelerated delivery, the COUNTY may acquire the goods or services from another source.

Except as this contract may otherwise provide, if the COUNTY'S requirements do not result in orders in the quantities described as "estimated" in the contract's price schedule, that fact shall not constitute the basis for an equitable adjustment.

#### **ARTICLE 31 - CONTRACT CLAIMS**

"Claim" as used in this provision means a written demand or written assertion by one of the contracting parties seeking as a matter of right, the payment of a certain sum of money, the adjustment or interpretation of contract terms, or other relief arising under or relating to this contract.

Claims made by a Contractor/Contractor against the County relating to a particular contract shall be submitted to the Procurement Manager in writing clearly labeled "Contract Claim" requesting a final decision. The Contractor also shall provide with the claim a certification as follows: "I certify that the claim is made in good faith;

that the supporting data are accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief; that the amount requested accurately reflects the contract adjustment for which the Contractor/Contractor believes the County is liable; and that I am duly authorized to certify the claim on behalf of the Contractor/Contractor."

## Failure to document a claim in this manner shall render the claim null and void. Moreover, no claim shall be accepted after final payment of the contract.

The decision of the Procurement Manager shall be issued in writing and shall be

furnished to the Contractor/Contractor. The decision shall state the reasons for the decision reached. The Procurement Manager shall render the final decision within sixty (60) days after receipt of Contractor's/Contractor's written request for a final decision. The Procurement Manager's decision shall be final and conclusive.

The Contractor/Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of this contract pending final resolution of any request for relief, claim, appeal or action arising under the contract and shall comply with any final decision rendered by the Manager of Procurement.

## **ARTICLE 32 - TOBACCO FREE CAMPUS**

All Orange County operations under the Board of County Commissioners shall be tobacco free. This policy shall apply to parking lots, parks, break areas and worksites. It is also applicable to contractors and their personnel during contract performance on county-owned property. Tobacco is defined as tobacco products including, but not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, e-cigarettes, pipes, chewing tobacco and snuff. Failure to abide by this policy may result in civil penalties levied under Chapter 386, Florida Statutes and/or contract enforcement remedies.

## **ARTICLE 33 – VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT STATUS**

Prior to the employment of any person under this contract, the contractor shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of (a) all persons employed during the contract term by the contractor to perform employment duties within Florida and (b) all persons, including subcontractors, assigned by the contractor to perform work pursuant to the contract with Orange County. Please refer to USCIS.gov for more information on this process.

## Only those employees determined eligible to work within the United States shall be employed under the contract.

Therefore, by submission of a bid or proposal in response to this solicitation, the contractor confirms that all employees in the above categories will undergo everification before placement on this contract. The contractor further confirms his commitment to comply with this requirement by completing the E- Verification certification.

## <u>ARTICLE 34 – LAWS AND REGULATIONS</u>

All applicable Federal and State laws, municipal and County ordinances shall apply to the solicitation and Contract.

## **ARTICLE 35 – ADDENDA**

All requirements contained in any addenda to the solicitation for this procurement are part of and hereby incorporated into this contract.

ARTICLE 37 - NOTICE	
All notices required in this C requested, and if sent to the CC	ontract shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt DUNTY shall be mailed to:
	<del></del>
	<del></del>
	<del></del>
and if sent to the CONTRACTO	PR shall be mailed to:
Florida has made and exec	Board of County Commissioners of Orange County, uted this Contract on behalf of the COUNTY and
CONTRACTOR has nereunto s CONTRACTOR:	et its hand the day and year above written. ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA:
Company Name	Johnny Richardson, CPPO, CFCM Procurement Division Manager
Signature	Date
Typed Name	
Title	
Date	

## **ATTACHMENT "A" INDEX:**

- 1) 45 CFR §75.207 (Specific Award Conditions)
- 2) 45 CFR §75.341 (Financial Reporting)
- 3) 45 CFR §75.342 (Monitoring and Reporting Program Performance)
- 4) 45 CFR §75.352 (Requirements for Pass-Through Entities)
- 5) 45 CFR §75.361 (Retention Requirements for Records)
- 6) 45 CFR §75.364 (Access to Records)
- 7) 45 CFR §75.365 (Restrictions on Public Access to Records)
- 8) 45 CFR §75.371 (Remedies for Non-Compliance)
- 9) 45 CFR §75.372 (Termination)
- 10) 45 CFR §75.373 (Notification of Termination Requirement)
- 11) 45 CFR §75.374 (Opportunities to Object, Hearings and Appeals)
- 12) 45 CFR §75.375 (Effects of Suspension and Termination)
- 13) 45 CFR §75.381 (Closeout)
- 14) 45 CFR §75.386 (Post-Closeout Adjustments and Continuing Responsibilities)
- 45 CFR §75.391 (Collection of Amounts Due)

## 45 CFR §75.207 Specific award conditions.

- 16) (a) The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may impose additional specific award conditions as needed in accordance with paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, under the following circumstances:
- 17) (1) Based on the criteria set forth in §75.205;
- 18) (2) When an applicant or recipient has a history of failure to comply with the general or specific terms and conditions of a Federal award;
- 19) (3) When an applicant or recipient fails to meet expected performance goals as described in §75.210, or;
- 20) (4) When the applicant or recipient is not otherwise responsible.
- 21) (b) These additional Federal award conditions may include items such as the following:
- 22) (1) Requiring payments as reimbursements rather than advance payments;
- 23) (2) Withholding authority to proceed to the next phase until receipt of evidence of acceptable performance within a given period of performance;
- 24) (3) Requiring additional, more detailed financial reports;
- 25) (4) Requiring additional project monitoring;
- 26) (5) Requiring the non-Federal entity to obtain technical or management assistance; or
- 27) (6) Establishing additional prior approvals.
- 28) (c) The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity must notify the applicant or non-Federal entity as to:
- 29) (1) The nature of the additional requirements;
- 30) (2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;
- 31) (3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;
- 32) (4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable, and
- 33) (5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.
- 34) (d) Any specific conditions must be promptly removed once the conditions that prompted them have been corrected.

#### 45 CFR §75.341 Financial reporting.

Unless otherwise approved by OMB, the HHS awarding agency may solicit only the standard, OMB-approved government-wide data elements for collection of financial information (at time of publication the Federal Financial Report or such future collections as may be approved by OMB and listed on the OMB Web site). This information must be collected with the frequency required by the terms and conditions of the Federal award, but no less frequently than annually nor more frequently than quarterly except in unusual circumstances, for example where more frequent reporting is necessary for the effective monitoring of the Federal award or could significantly affect program outcomes, and preferably in coordination with performance reporting.

#### 45 CFR §75.342 Monitoring and reporting program performance.

- (a) *Monitoring by the non-Federal entity*. The non-Federal entity is responsible for oversight of the operations of the Federal award supported activities. The non-Federal entity must monitor its activities under Federal awards to assure compliance with applicable Federal requirements and performance expectations are being achieved. Monitoring by the non-Federal entity must cover each program, function or activity. See also §75.352.
- (b) *Non-construction performance reports*. The HHS awarding agency must use standard, OMB-approved data elements for collection of performance information (including performance progress reports, Research Performance Progress Report, or such future collections as may be approved by OMB and listed on the OMB Web site).
- (1) The non-Federal entity must submit performance reports at the interval required by the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity to best inform improvements in program outcomes and productivity. Intervals must be no less frequent than annually nor more frequent than quarterly except in unusual circumstances, for example where more frequent reporting is necessary for the effective monitoring of the Federal award or could significantly affect program outcomes. Annual reports must be due 90 calendar days after the reporting period; quarterly or semiannual reports must be due 30 calendar days after the reporting period. Alternatively, the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may require annual reports before the anniversary dates of multiple year Federal awards. The final performance report will be due 90 calendar days after the period of performance end date. If a justified request is submitted by a non-Federal entity, the HHS awarding agency may extend the due date for any performance report.
- (2) The non-Federal entity must submit performance reports using OMB-approved government-wide standard information collections when providing performance information. As appropriate in accordance with the above-mentioned information collections, these reports will contain, for each Federal award, brief information on the following unless other collections are approved by OMB:
  - (i) A comparison of actual accomplishments to the objectives of the Federal award established for the period. Where the accomplishments of the Federal award can be quantified, a computation of the cost (for example, related to units of accomplishment) may be required if that information will be useful. Where performance trend data and analysis would be informative to the HHS awarding agency program, the HHS awarding agency should include this as a performance reporting requirement.
    - (ii) The reasons why established goals were not met, if appropriate.
  - (iii) Additional pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis and explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.
- (c) Construction performance reports. For the most part, onsite technical inspections and certified percentage of completion data are relied on heavily by HHS awarding agencies and pass-through entities to monitor progress under Federal awards and subawards for construction. The HHS awarding agency may require additional performance reports only when considered necessary.

- (d) *Significant developments*. Events may occur between the scheduled performance reporting dates that have significant impact upon the supported activity. In such cases, the non-Federal entity must inform the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity as soon as the following types of conditions become known:
- (1) Problems, delays, or adverse conditions which will materially impair the ability to meet the objective of the Federal award. This disclosure must include a statement of the action taken, or contemplated, and any assistance needed to resolve the situation.
- (2) Favorable developments which enable meeting time schedules and objectives sooner or at less cost than anticipated or producing more or different beneficial results than originally planned.
- (e) The HHS awarding agency may make site visits as warranted by program needs.
- (f) The HHS awarding agency may waive any performance report required by this part if not needed.

#### 45 CFR § 75.352 Requirements for pass-through entities.

All pass-through entities must:

- (a) Ensure that every subaward is clearly identified to the subrecipient as a subaward and includes the following information at the time of the subaward and if any of these data elements change, include the changes in subsequent subaward modification. When some of this information is not available, the pass-through entity must provide the best information available to describe the Federal award and subaward. Required information includes:
  - (1) Federal Award Identification.
  - (i) Subrecipient name (which must match the name associated with their unique entity identifier);
    - (ii) Subrecipient's unique entity identifier;
    - (iii) Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN);
    - (iv) Federal Award Date (see §75.2 Federal award date);
    - (v) Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date;
    - (vi) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action;
    - (vii) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the subrecipient;
    - (viii) Total Amount of the Federal Award;

- (ix) Federal award project description, as required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA);
- (x) Name of HHS awarding agency, pass-through entity, and contact information for awarding official,
- (xi) CFDA Number and Name; the pass-through entity must identify the dollar amount made available under each Federal award and the CFDA number at time of disbursement;
  - (xii) Identification of whether the award is R&D; and
- (xiii) Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if the de minimis rate is charged per §75.414).
- (2) All requirements imposed by the pass-through entity on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.
- (3) Any additional requirements that the pass-through entity imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity to meet its own responsibility to the HHS awarding agency including identification of any required financial and performance reports;
- (4) An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a de minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §75.414(f).
- (5) A requirement that the subrecipient permit the pass-through entity and auditors to have access to the subrecipient's records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
  - (6) Appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.
- (b) Evaluate each subrecipient's risk of noncompliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward for purposes of determining the appropriate subrecipient monitoring described in paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section, which may include consideration of such factors as:
  - (1) The subrecipient's prior experience with the same or similar subawards;
- (2) The results of previous audits including whether or not the subrecipient receives a Single Audit in accordance with subpart F, and the extent to which the same or similar subaward has been audited as a major program;

- (3) Whether the subrecipient has new personnel or new or substantially changed systems; and
- (4) The extent and results of HHS awarding agency monitoring (e.g., if the subrecipient also receives Federal awards directly from a HHS awarding agency).
- (c) Consider imposing specific subaward conditions upon a subrecipient if appropriate as described in §75.207.
- (d) Monitor the activities of the subrecipient as necessary to ensure that the subaward is used for authorized purposes, in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward; and that subaward performance goals are achieved. Pass-through entity monitoring of the subrecipient must include:
  - (1) Reviewing financial and performance reports required by the pass-through entity.
- (2) Following-up and ensuring that the subrecipient takes timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies pertaining to the Federal award provided to the subrecipient from the pass-through entity detected through audits, on-site reviews, and other means.
- (3) Issuing a management decision for audit findings pertaining to the Federal award provided to the subrecipient from the pass-through entity as required by §75.521.
- (e) Depending upon the pass-through entity's assessment of risk posed by the subrecipient (as described in paragraph (b) of this section), the following monitoring tools may be useful for the pass-through entity to ensure proper accountability and compliance with program requirements and achievement of performance goals:
- (1) Providing subrecipients with training and technical assistance on program-related matters; and
  - (2) Performing on-site reviews of the subrecipient's program operations;
  - (3) Arranging for agreed-upon-procedures engagements as described in §75.425.
- (f) Verify that every subrecipient is audited as required by subpart F of this part when it is expected that the subrecipient's Federal awards expended during the respective fiscal year equaled or exceeded the threshold set forth in §75.501.
- (g) Consider whether the results of the subrecipient's audits, on-site reviews, or other monitoring indicate conditions that necessitate adjustments to the pass-through entity's own records.
- (h) Consider taking enforcement action against noncompliant subrecipients as described in §75.371 and in program regulations.

#### 45 CFR §75.361 Retention requirements for records.

Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other non-Federal entity records pertinent to a Federal award must be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient. HHS awarding agencies and pass-through entities must not impose any other record retention requirements upon non-Federal entities. The only exceptions are the following:

- (a) If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 3-year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken.
- (b) When the non-Federal entity is notified in writing by the HHS awarding agency, cognizant agency for audit, oversight agency for audit, cognizant agency for indirect costs, or pass-through entity to extend the retention period.
- (c) Records for real property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must be retained for 3 years after final disposition.
- (d) When records are transferred to or maintained by the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity, the 3-year retention requirement is not applicable to the non-Federal entity.
- (e) Records for program income transactions after the period of performance. In some cases, recipients must report program income after the period of performance. Where there is such a requirement, the retention period for the records pertaining to the earning of the program income starts from the end of the non-Federal entity's fiscal year in which the program income is earned.
- (f) Indirect cost rate proposals and cost allocations plans. This paragraph applies to the following types of documents and their supporting records: Indirect cost rate computations or proposals, cost allocation plans, and any similar accounting computations of the rate at which a particular group of costs is chargeable (such as computer usage chargeback rates or composite fringe benefit rates).
- (1) If submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other computation is required to be submitted to the Federal Government (or to the pass-through entity) to form the basis for negotiation of the rate, then the 3-year retention period for its supporting records starts from the date of such submission.
- (2) If not submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other computation is not required to be submitted to the Federal Government (or to the pass-through entity) for negotiation purposes, then the 3-year retention period for the proposal, plan, or computation and its supporting records starts from the end of the fiscal year (or other accounting period) covered by the proposal, plan, or other computation.

#### 45 CFR §75.364 Access to records.

- (a) Records of non-Federal entities. The HHS awarding agency, Inspectors General, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the pass-through entity, or any of their authorized representatives, must have the right of access to any documents, papers, or other records of the non-Federal entity which are pertinent to the Federal award, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right also includes timely and reasonable access to the non-Federal entity's personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents.
- (b) Only under extraordinary and rare circumstances would such access include review of the true name of victims of a crime. Routine monitoring cannot be considered extraordinary and rare circumstances that would necessitate access to this information. When access to the true name of victims of a crime is necessary, appropriate steps to protect this sensitive information must be taken by both the non-Federal entity and the HHS awarding agency. Any such access, other than under a court order or subpoena pursuant to a bona fide confidential investigation, must be approved by the head of the HHS awarding agency or delegate.
- (c) Expiration of right of access. The rights of access in this section are not limited to the required retention period but last as long as the records are retained. HHS awarding agencies and pass-through entities must not impose any other access requirements upon non-Federal entities

#### 45 CFR §75.365 Restrictions on public access to records.

No HHS awarding agency may place restrictions on the non-Federal entity that limit public access to the records of the non-Federal entity pertinent to a Federal award, except for protected personally identifiable information (PII) or when the HHS awarding agency can demonstrate that such records will be kept confidential and would have been exempted from disclosure pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552) or controlled unclassified information pursuant to Executive Order 13556 if the records had belonged to the HHS awarding agency. The Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552) (FOIA) does not apply to those records that remain under a non-Federal entity's control except as required under §75.322. Unless required by Federal, state, local, or tribal statute, non-Federal entities are not required to permit public access to their records. The non-Federal entity's records provided to a Federal agency generally will be subject to FOIA and applicable exemptions.

#### 45 CFR §75.371 Remedies for noncompliance.

If a non-Federal entity fails to comply with Federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and conditions of a Federal award, the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may impose additional conditions, as described in §75.207. If the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity determines that noncompliance cannot be remedied by imposing additional conditions, the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may take one or more of the following actions, as appropriate in the circumstances:

- (a) Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the non-Federal entity or more severe enforcement action by the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity.
- (b) Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance.
- (c) Wholly or partly suspend (suspension of award activities) or terminate the Federal award.
- (d) Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR part 180 and HHS awarding agency regulations at 2 CFR part 376 (or in the case of a pass-through entity, recommend such a proceeding be initiated by a HHS awarding agency).
  - (e) Withhold further Federal awards for the project or program.
  - (f) Take other remedies that may be legally available.

#### 45 CFR §75.372 Termination.

- (a) The Federal award may be terminated in whole or in part as follows:
- (1) By the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity, if a non-Federal entity fails to comply with terms and conditions of a Federal award;
  - (2) By the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity for cause;
- (3) By the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity with the consent of the non-Federal entity, in which case the two parties must agree upon the termination conditions, including the effective date and, in the case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated; or
- (4) By the non-Federal entity upon sending to the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity written notification setting forth the reasons for such termination, the effective date, and, in the case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated. However, if the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity determines in the case of partial termination that the reduced or modified portion of the Federal award or subaward will not accomplish the purposes for which the Federal award was made, the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may terminate the Federal award in its entirety.
- (b) When a Federal award is terminated or partially terminated, both the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity and the non-Federal entity remain responsible for compliance with the requirements in §§75.381 and 75.386.

#### 45 CFR §75.373 Notification of termination requirement.

- (a) The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity must provide to the non-Federal entity a notice of termination.
- (b) If the Federal award is terminated for the non-Federal entity's failure to comply with the Federal statutes, regulations, or terms and conditions of the Federal award, the notification must state that the termination decision may be considered in evaluating future applications received from the non-Federal entity.
- (c) Upon termination of a Federal award, the HHS awarding agency must provide the information required under FFATA to the Federal Web site established to fulfill the requirements of FFATA, and update or notify any other relevant government-wide systems or entities of any indications of poor performance as required by 41 U.S.C. 417b and 31 U.S.C. 3321 and implementing guidance at 2 CFR part 77 (forthcoming at time of publication). See also the requirements for Suspension and Debarment at 2 CFR part 180

#### 45 CFR §75.374 Opportunities to object, hearings and appeals.

(a) Upon taking any remedy for non-compliance, the HHS awarding agency must provide the non-Federal entity an opportunity to object and provide information and documentation challenging the suspension or termination action, in accordance with written processes and procedures published by the HHS awarding agency. The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity must comply with any requirements for hearings, appeals or other administrative proceedings to which the non-Federal entity is entitled under any statute or regulation applicable to the action involved.

#### (b) See also:

- (1) 42 CFR part 50, subpart D for the Public Health Service Appeals Procedures,
- (2) 45 CFR part 16 for the Procedures of the Departmental Appeals Board, and
- (3) 45 CFR part 95, subpart A for the time limits for states to file claims.
- (4) 45 CFR part 95, subpart E for the State cost allocation plan disapprovals.

#### 45 CFR §75.375 Effects of suspension and termination.

Costs to the non-Federal entity resulting from obligations incurred by the non-Federal entity during a suspension or after termination of a Federal award or subaward are not allowable unless the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes them in the notice of suspension or termination or subsequently. However, costs during suspension or after termination are allowable if:

- (a) The costs result from obligations which were properly incurred by the non-Federal entity before the effective date of suspension or termination, are not in anticipation of it; and
- (b) The costs would be allowable if the Federal award was not suspended or expired normally at the end of the period of performance in which the termination takes effect.

#### 45 CFR §75.381 Closeout.

The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity will close-out the Federal award when it determines that all applicable administrative actions and all required work of the Federal award have been completed by the non-Federal entity. This section specifies the actions the non-Federal entity and HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity must take to complete this process at the end of the period of performance.

- (a) The non-Federal entity must submit, no later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance, all financial, performance, and other reports as required by the terms and conditions of the Federal award. The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may approve extensions when requested by the non-Federal entity.
- (b) Unless the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity authorizes an extension, a non-Federal entity must liquidate all obligations incurred under the Federal award not later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance as specified in the terms and conditions of the Federal award.
- (c) The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity must make prompt payments to the non-Federal entity for allowable reimbursable costs under the Federal award being closed out.
- (d) The non-Federal entity must promptly refund any balances of unobligated cash that the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity paid in advance or paid and that are not authorized to be retained by the non-Federal entity for use in other projects. See OMB Circular A-129 and see §75.391 for requirements regarding unreturned amounts that become delinquent debts.
- (e) Consistent with the terms and conditions of the Federal award, the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity must make a settlement for any upward or downward adjustments to the Federal share of costs after closeout reports are received.
- (f) The non-Federal entity must account for any real and personal property acquired with Federal funds or received from the Federal Government in accordance with §§75.317 through 75.323 and 75.343.
- (g) The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity should complete all closeout actions for Federal awards no later than 180 calendar days after receipt and acceptance of all required final reports.

#### 45 CFR §75.386 Post-closeout adjustments and continuing responsibilities.

- (a) The closeout of a Federal award does not affect any of the following:
- (1) The right of the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later audit or other review. The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity must make any cost disallowance determination and notify the non-Federal entity within the record retention period.
- (2) The obligation of the non-Federal entity to return any funds due as a result of later refunds, corrections, or other transactions including final indirect cost rate adjustments.
  - (3) Audit requirements in subpart F of this part.
- (4) Property management and disposition requirements in §§75.317 through 75.323.
  - (5) Records retention as required in §§75.361 through 75.365.
- (b) After closeout of the Federal award, a relationship created under the Federal award may be modified or ended in whole or in part with the consent of the HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity and the non-Federal entity, provided the responsibilities of the non-Federal entity referred to in paragraph (a) of this section, including those for property management as applicable, are considered and provisions made for continuing responsibilities of the non-Federal entity, as appropriate

#### 45 CFR §75.391 Collection of amounts due.

- (a) Any funds paid to the non-Federal entity in excess of the amount to which the non-Federal entity is finally determined to be entitled under the terms of the Federal award constitute a debt to the Federal Government. If not paid within 90 calendar days after demand, the HHS awarding agency may reduce the debt by:
  - (1) Making an administrative offset against other requests for reimbursements;
  - (2) Withholding advance payments otherwise due to the non-Federal entity; or
  - (3) Other action permitted by Federal statute.
- (b) Except where otherwise provided by statutes or regulations, the HHS awarding agency will charge interest on an overdue debt in accordance with the Federal Claims Collection Standards (31 CFR parts 900 through 999). The date from which interest is computed is not extended by litigation or the filing of any form of appeal. (See also HHS Claims Collection regulations at 45 CFR part 30.)

# ATTACHMENT A – PART B

# SUBAWARD/ SUB-RECIPIENT FEDERAL AWARD AGREEMENTS CHECK LIST

	2 CFR 00.331	REQUIREMENT FOR PASS-THROUGH ENTITIES (CHECKLIST)		SUBRECIPIENT INFORMATION
(i)	Subrecipi in DUNS)	ent name (which must match registered name		
(ii)	Subrecipient's DUNS number (see 200.32 Data Universal Numbering system (DUNS)number			
(iii)	Federal A	ward Identification Number (FAIN)		
(iv)	Federal Award Date (see §200.39 Federal award date);			
(v)	Subaward	d Period of Performance Start and End Date		
(vi)	Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action			
(vii)	Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the subrecipient;			
(viii)	Total Amount of the Federal Award			
(ix)	Federal award project description, as required to be responsive to the federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA);			
(x)	Name of Federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, and contact information for awarding official,			
(xi)	CFDA Number and Name; the pass-through entity must identify the dollar amount made available under each Federal award and the CFDA number at time of disbursement			
(xii)	Identifica	tion of whether the award is R&D		
(xiii)		ost rate for the Federal award (including if the is rate is charged per §200.414 Indirect (F&A)		

	costs).	
(2)	All requirements imposed by the pass-through entity on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.	
(3)	Any additional requirements that the pass-through entity imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity to meet its own responsibility to the Federal awarding agency including identification of any required financial and performance reports;	
(4)	An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a de minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs, paragraph (f) of this part.	
(5)	A requirement that the subrecipient permit the pass-through entity and auditors to have access to the subrecipient's records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and	
(6)	Appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.	

(b)	Evaluate each subrecipient's risk of noncompliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward for purposes of determining the appropriate subrecipient monitoring described in paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section, which may include consideration of such factors as:	
(1)	The subrecipient's prior experience with the same or similar subawards;	
(2)	The results of previous audits including whether or not the subrecipient receives a Single  Audit in accordance with Subpart F—Audit Requirements of this part, and the extent to which the same or similar subaward has been audited as a major program;	
(3)	Whether the subrecipient has new personnel or new or substantially changed systems; and	
(4)	The extent and results of Federal awarding agency monitoring (e.g., if the subrecipient also receives Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency).	
(c)	Consider imposing specific subaward conditions upon a subrecipient if appropriate as described in §200.207 Specific conditions.	
(d)	Monitor the activities of the subrecipient as necessary to ensure that the subaward is used for authorized purposes, in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward; and that subaward performance goals are achieved. Passthrough entity monitoring of the subrecipient must include:	

(1)	Reviewing financial and performance reports required by the pass-through entity.
(2)	Following-up and ensuring that the subrecipient takes timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies pertaining to the Federal award provided to the subrecipient from the pass-through entity detected through audits, on-site reviews, and other means.
(3)	Issuing a management decision for audit findings pertaining to the Federal award provided to the subrecipient from the pass-through entity as required by §200.521 Management decision.
(e)	Depending upon the pass-through entity's assessment of risk posed by the subrecipient (as described in paragraph (b) of this section), the following monitoring tools may be useful for the pass-through entity to ensure proper accountability and compliance with program requirements and achievement of performance goals:
(1)	Providing Subrecipient's with training and technical assistance on program-related matters; and
(2)	Performing on-site reviews of the subrecipient's program operations;
(3)	Arranging for agreed-upon-procedures engagements as described in §200.425 Audit services.
(f)	Verify that every subrecipient is audited as required by Subpart F—Audit Requirements of this part when it is expected that the subrecipient's Federal awards expended during the respective fiscal year equaled or exceeded the threshold set forth in §200.501 Audit requirements.
(g)	Consider whether the results of the subrecipient's audits, on-site reviews, or other monitoring indicate conditions that necessitate adjustments to the pass-through entity's own records.
(h)	Consider taking enforcement action against noncompliant subrecipients as described in §200.338 Remedies for noncompliance of this part and in program regulations.
	[78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as amended at 79 FR 75885, Dec. 19, 2014]

#### Attachment C - Staff Invoices

# Wraparound Orange Wraparound Specialist Monthly Invoice Form

Name and Title of	Start	
Agency		
Month/Year		
Section I – Core S spent in each act		number of hours and minutes
	Service Minutes (MISM) Recontacts or phone contacts personnel, other treatment	inutes from the Management Information eport from "IRIS". Includes face-to-face is with families, youth, community providers or natural supports (teachers, lors, relatives, etc. (or attempts to
Section II – Opera	ational Services	
Record APPROXII	MATE number of hours spen	it in each activity per month.
Coaching	<u> </u>	
Staff Meetings		
Trainings/Conferer	nces/webinars	
Vacation/Sick Time	e	
Administrative Dut	ties (filing, record keeping, fax	xing, emails, etc
Other:		_ List:
By signing this forr correct.	m, I verify the information I ha	ave confirmed the information is true and
Employee Signatu	ire	Date:
Supervisor Signatu	ure	Date:

## Wraparound Orange Lead Wraparound Specialist Monthly Invoice Form

Name and Title o	f Staff
Agency	
Month/Year	
	Services – Record EXACT number of hours and minutes etivity per month.
	Includes face-to-face contacts or phone contacts with families, youth, community personnel, other treatment providers, or natural supports (teachers, coaches, mentors, counselors, relatives, etc. (or attempts to contact). Record exact number of minutes from the Management Information Service Minutes (MISM) Report from "IRIS".
	Direct supervision/coaching of staff in Core Services
	Facilitation of Staff Meetings/Coaching/Training
	Facilitation of system of care and wraparound trainings including development of training materials
	Review of staff documentation in IRIS.
<b>Section II</b> – Ope	rational Services
Record <b>APPROX</b>	IMATE number of hours spent in each activity per month.
Staff Meetings	
Trainings/Conference	ences/webinars
Vacation/Sick Tin	ne
Administrative Du	uties (filing, record keeping, faxing, emails, etc
Other:	l ist·

verify the information I have	ve confirmed the information is true and
	Date:
	Date:
/raparound Orange Wrap Monthly Invoic	
ıff	
ncludes face-to-face contact outh, community personne upports (teachers, coaches or attempts to contact). Reference "IRIS".  Direct supervision/coaching facilitation of Staff Meetings	s/Coaching sessions e and wraparound trainings including terials
	vices – Record EXACT not y per month.  Includes face-to-face contact outh, community personne upports (teachers, coaches or attempts to contact). Reference the Management Information "IRIS".  Direct supervision/coaching acilitation of Staff Meetings acilitation of system of car evelopment of training management of train

### Section II - Operational Services

Record **APPROXIMATE** number of hours spent in each activity per month.

Trainings/Conference	ces/webinars		
Vacation/Sick Time			
Administrative Dutie	s (filing, record keeping, fa	ixing, emails, etc	
Other:		_ List:	
By signing this form correct.	, I verify the information I h	ave confirmed the information is true	and
Employee Signature		Date:	
Supervisor Signatur	e	Date:	
	Wraparound Orange W Monthly Invo		
Name and Title of S	taff		
Agency			
Month/Year			
Section I – Core Sespent in each activ	Includes face-to-face cont youth, community personr supports (teachers, coach (or attempts to contact).	number of hours and minutes  acts or phone contacts with families, nel, other treatment providers, or natu es, mentors, counselors, relatives, et Record exact number of minutes fro ation Service Minutes (MISM) Repo	с. <b>от</b>
	Direct supervision/coachir	ng of staff in Core Services	
	Direct supervision of staff for Family Team meetings	in Family Team meetings or preparat	ion
	Facilitation of Staff Meetin	gs/Coaching sessions	

	Facilitation of system of care and wraparound trainings including development of training materials
	Review of staff documentation in IRIS.
Section II - Operat	ional Services
Record APPROXIM	IATE number of hours spent in each activity per month.
Trainings/Conference	ces/webinars
Vacation/Sick Time	
Administrative Dutie	es (filing, record keeping, faxing, emails, etc
Other:	List:
By signing this form correct.	, I verify the information I have confirmed the information is true and
Employee Signature	eDate:
Supervisor Signatur	reDate:

# Wraparound Orange Family Partners Monthly Invoice Form

name and Title of	Stall
Agency	
Month/Year	
Section I – Core S	Services – Record EXACT number of hours and minutes
spent in each act	
	Record exact number of minutes from the Management Information Service Minutes (MISM) Report from "IRIS". Includes face-to-face contacts or phone contacts with families, youth, community personnel, other treatment providers or natural supports (teachers, coaches, mentors, counselors, relatives, etc. (or attempts to contact).
Section II - Opera	tional Services
Record APPROXII	MATE number of hours spent in each activity per month.
Coaching	<del>-</del>
Staff Meetings	
Trainings/Conferer	nces/webinars
Vacation/Sick Time	<b>-</b>
Administrative Duti	es (filing, record keeping, faxing, emails, etc
Other:	List:
By signing this forr correct.	n, I verify the information I have confirmed the information is true and
Employee Signatu	reDate:
Supervisor Signatu	ure Date: